River Bend Town Council Work Session Minutes April 14, 2022 Town Hall 5:00 p.m.

Present Council Members: Mayor John Kirkland

Don Fogle Brian Leonard Barbara Maurer Buddy Sheffield Bud Van Slyke

Town Manager:

Town Clerk:

Finance Director:

Town Attorney:

Delane Jackson

Kristie Nobles

Mandy Gilbert

Dave Baxter

Members of the Public Present: 3

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Kirkland called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. on Thursday, April 14, 2022 at the River Bend Town Hall with a quorum present.

VOTE – Addition to Agenda

Councilman Sheffield motioned to amend the agenda by adding item 11A Budget Amendment. The motion carried unanimously.

VOTE – Approval of Agenda

Councilman Sheffield motioned to accept the amended agenda as presented. The motion carried unanimously.

<u>Discussion – CAC Appointment</u>

Councilwoman Maurer stated that the Community Appearance Commission (CAC) had received an application for the CAC Advisory Board. She stated that Ms. Donna Perry was in attendance and had attended previous CAC meetings. She stated that the CAC recommends appointing Ms. Perry to the CAC Advisory Board. Councilman Fogle expressed his gratitude to Ms. Perry for volunteering her time to the CAC board.

VOTE - CAC Appointment

Councilwoman Maurer motioned to appoint Donna Perry to the Community Appearance Commission for the appropriate term. The motion passed unanimously.

DISCUSSION – Public Hearing – Re-Zoning

The Manager stated that a Public Hearing is scheduled for Thursday April 21st regarding the rezoning of 5530 US Highway 17 South. He stated that the adjacent property owners have been mailed a letter and the Planning Board has approved the re-zoning request. Councilman Leonard asked if the property owners have plans for development of that property. The Manager stated that the landowner has expressed an interest in using the property for a storage facility.

DISCUSSION – Public Hearing Policy

The Manager stated that the current Public Hearing Policy was adopted in 2017 prior to the pandemic. He stated that the policy needs to be revised and presented his recommendation.

VOTE – Public Hearing Policy

Councilman Sheffield motioned to adopt the Public Hearing Policy Amendment as presented. The motion carried unanimously. (see attached)

DISCUSSION – Audit Contract Approval for FY 21-22

The Manager stated that Petway, Mills and Pearson has been performing the Town's audit over the years and he is pleased with their service. He stated they have provided a contract price for year 2022 and the price has only increased \$200. He stated that the contract would be on the agenda at the next council meeting.

DISCUSSION – ARPA Grant Policies

The Manager stated that the following polices are from the US Treasury and are required for the Town to use the ARPA funding received.

VOTE – Allowable Cost Policy

Councilman Fogle motioned to adopt the Allowable Cost Policy as presented. The motion carried unanimously. (see attached)

VOTE – Nondiscrimination Policy

Councilman Fogle motioned to adopt the Nondiscrimination Policy as presented. The motion carried unanimously. (see attached)

VOTE – Eligible Use Policy

Councilman Leonard motioned to adopt the Eligible Use Policy as presented. The motion carried unanimously. (see attached)

VOTE – Records Retention Policy

Councilman Leonard motioned to adopt the Records Retention Policy as presented. The motion carried unanimously. (see attached)

VOTE – Conflicts of Interest Policy

Councilman Leonard motioned to adopt the Conflicts of Interest Policy as presented. The motion carried unanimously. (see attached)

VOTE- Budget Amendment 21-B-06

Councilman Van Slyke motioned to approve Budget Amendment 21-B-06 as presented. The motion carried unanimously. (see attached)

VOTE- American Rescue Plan Act Grant Project Ordinance

Councilman Van Slyke motioned to approve the American Rescue Plan Act Grant Project Ordinance as presented. The motion carried unanimously. (see attached)

VOTE – Public Works Capital Project Fund Ordinance

Councilman Van Slyke motioned to approve the Public Works Capital Project Fund Ordinance as presented. The motion carried unanimously. (see attached)

DISCUSSION – Leaf and Limb

The Manager stated that the contracts for KA Jones Design and Management for leaf and limb collection, mowing and landscaping for the Town are included in the agenda package. He stated that Mr. Jones has proposed to purchase a leaf vacuum machine that would suck up the leaves instead of requiring residents to bag and label leaves. He also stated that the new contracts would be a four-year contract period versus the previous two-year term and these contracts include automatic adjustment based on inflation.

VOTE – Leaf and Limb Contract Amendment

Councilwoman Maurer motioned to approve the Leaf and Limb Contract Amendment as presented. The motion carried unanimously. (see attached)

VOTE – Mowing Contract Amendment

Councilwoman Maurer motioned to approve the Mowing Contract Amendment as presented. The motion carried unanimously. (see attached)

VOTE – Landscaping Contract Amendment

Councilwoman Maurer motioned to approve the Landscaping Contract Amendment as presented. The motion carried unanimously. (see attached)

DISCUSSION - Leaf and Limb Schedule

The Manager stated that the 2022 – 2023 Leaf and Limb schedule is included in the agenda. The Manager stated that since the Council approved the leaf and limb and it prohibits bagging leaves, the schedule would need to be revised to reflect that.

DISCUSSION – WWTP Grant

The Manager stated that he is in the process of applying for a grant to revitalize the Waste Water Treatment Plant (WWTP). He stated the maximum grant amount is \$5,000,000 and that is what he will apply for. He stated he has been working with Rivers and Associates on the application and is trying to make changes to improve our scoring. He stated that the Town had spent \$250,000 a few years ago developing a set of plans and specifications for a project to revitalize the WWTP. He stated that the Town received an authorization to construct that project but the Town decided not to fund it. He stated that the grant application would basically be to fund that same project. He stated he has received an updated estimate for the project of around \$9,000,000. He stated that the Town could receive additional points by changing our Sewer Capital Improvement Plan to 10 years. He stated that the water rates are lower now than what they were 5 years ago and if we raise the rates, back to what they were the Town would receive additional points. He asked the Council for input on raising the rates. Councilman Van Slyke stated that the debt service bond is set to expire in 2027. He stated they need to look at the life span of the facility and receiving this grant would allow the Town to revitalize the plant and expand its life span. The Manager stated that completion of this project would basically bring most of the WWTP back to a new condition. The Mayor stated that the treatment facility is a very harsh environment and it will eventually need to be rebuilt or revitalized. Councilman Sheffield asked the Manager if the Town is awarded the grant in the amount of \$5,000,000, how would the Town secure the remaining funds for the project. The Manager stated that the state may offer a low interest loan to make up the difference, but if they do not offer that option, the Town could secure a loan to make up the difference. Councilman Leonard stated that the Council needs to consider that there is a potential for a substantial amount of new development in the Northwest Quadrant that will put significantly more pressure on the existing system. He stated that he feels it would be an investment and a wise decision for the Council to make. Councilman Fogle stated that he agreed with Councilman Leonard. Councilman Leonard, Fogle, Van Slyke and Councilwoman Maurer agreed to revise the fee schedule. The Manager stated he would present the revised rates at the next Council meeting for Council action.

DISCUSSION – Advisory Board Ordinance Amendment

The Manager stated the revised Advisory Board Ordinance is included in the agenda with the revisions requested from the Council. Councilwoman Maurer suggested revising the required 5 days to submit approved minutes to 10 days. She stated that this recommendation came from two of the Advisory Boards she is the liaison to. Councilman Leonard stated that he approves the 10-day requirement but he would like the see the written annual report requirement removed. Councilman Sheffield agreed. Councilman Fogle stated that he feels the annual report is not a

burden or extra work for the Advisory Boards. He stated that he felt this report is for the community to understand what the Advisory Boards actual do.

VOTE – Advisory Board Minutes

Councilwoman Maurer motioned to change the time for the draft minutes from 5 business days to 10 business days following the meeting for submission to the Town Clerk. The motion carried unanimously.

VOTE – Advisory Board Annual Report

Councilman Leonard motioned to remove the Annual Report requirement from the powers and duties section for all of the Advisory Boards. The motion passed. (4 ayes – Leonard, Maurer, Sheffield, Van Slyke; 1 nay – Fogle)

REVIEW AGENDA FOR THE APRIL 21, 2022 COUNCIL MEETING

The Council reviewed the agenda for the April 21, 2022 Council meeting.

ADJOURNMENT/RECESS

There being no further business, Councilman Sheffield moved to adjourn. The motion carried unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 6:39 p.m.

Kristie J. Nobles
Town Clerk

Town of River Bend Nondiscrimination Policy

WHEREAS, the Town of River Bend has received an allocation of funds from the "Coronavirus State Fiscal Recovery Fund" or "Coronavirus Local Fiscal Recovery Fund" (together "CSLFRF funds"), established pursuant to Sections 602 and 603 of the Social Security Act, as added by Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, Pub. L. No. 117-2 (the "ARP/CSLFRF award").

WHEREAS, CSLFRF funds are subject to the U.S. Department of Treasury ("Treasury") regulations, including the Final Rule, the Award Terms and Conditions, and the Title VII implementing regulations at 31 C.F.R. Part 22.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the ARP/CSLFRF Award Terms and Conditions, and as a condition of receiving CSLFRF funds, the Town of River Bend agrees to follow all federal statutes and regulations prohibiting discrimination in its administration of CSLFRF under the terms and conditions of the ARP/CSLFRF award, including, without limitation, the following:

- i. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d et seq.) and Treasury's implementing regulations at 31 C.F.R. Part 22, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin within programs or activities receiving federal financial assistance;
- ii. The Fair Housing Act, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§ 3601 et seq.), which prohibits discrimination in housing on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, familial status, or disability;
- iii. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. § 794), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance;
- iv. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101 et seq.), and Treasury's implementing regulations at 31 C.F.R. Part 23, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of age in programs or activities receiving federal financial assistance; and
- v. Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 et seq.), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability under programs, activities, and services provided or made available by state and local governments or instrumentalities or agencies thereto.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the governing board of the Town of River Bend hereby adopts and enacts the following nondiscrimination policy, which shall apply to the operations of any program, activity, or facility that is supported in whole, or in part, by expenditures CSLFRF pursuant to the ARP/CSLFRF award.

Nondiscrimination Policy Statement

It is the policy of the Town of River Bend to ensure that no person shall, on the ground of race, color, national origin (including limited English Proficiency), familial status, sex, age, or disability, be excluded from participation in, be denied the befits of, or be otherwise subject to discrimination under any program or activity administered by the Town of River Bend, including programs or activities that are funded in whole or part, with Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds ("CSLFRF"), which the Town of River Bend received from the U.S. Department of Treasury ("Treasury") pursuant to Sections 602 and 603 of the Social Security Act, as added by Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, Pub. L. No. 117-2 (herein the "ARP/CSLFRF award").

I. Governing Statutory & Regulatory Authorities

As required by the CSLFRF <u>Award Terms and Conditions</u>, the Town of River Bend shall ensure that each "activity," "facility," or "program" that is funded in whole, or in part, with CSLFRF and administered under the ARP/CSLFRF award, will be facilitated, operated, or conducted in compliance with the following federal statutes and federal regulations prohibiting discrimination. These include, but are not limited to, the following:

- i. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d et seq.) and Treasury's implementing regulations at 31 C.F.R. Part 22, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin under programs or activities receiving federal financial assistance;
- ii. The Fair Housing Act, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§ 3601 et seq.), which prohibits discrimination in housing on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, familial status, or disability;
- iii. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. § 794), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability under any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance;
- iv. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101 et seq.), and Treasury's implementing regulations at 31 C.F.R. Part 23, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of age within programs or activities receiving federal financial assistance; and
- v. Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 et seq.), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability under programs, activities, and services provided or made available by state and local governments or instrumentalities or agencies thereto.

¹ 22 C.F.R. § 22.3 defines "program" and "activity" as all operations of an entity, including local governments, that receive Federal financial assistance, and the departments, agencies, or special purpose districts of the local governments to which Federal financial assistance is distributed. "Federal financial assistance" includes, among other things, grants and loans of federal funds. "Facility" includes all or any part of structures, equipment, or other real or personal property or interests therein, and the provision of facilities includes the construction, expansion, renovation, remodeling, alteration, or acquisition of facilities.

II. <u>Discriminatory Practices Prohibited in the Administration of the ARP/CSLFRF</u> Award

To ensure compliance with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and Title 31 Code of Federal Regulations, Part 22, the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, and other pertinent nondiscrimination authorities, the Town of River Bend shall prohibit, at a minimum, the following practices in its administration of CSLFRF pursuant to the ARP/CSLFRF award:

- 1. Denying to a person any service, financial aid, or other program benefit without good cause;
- 2. Providing to a person any service, financial aid, or another benefit which is different in quantity or quality, or is provided in a different manner, from that provided to others under the program.
- 3. Subjecting a person to segregation or separate treatment in any matter related to the receipt of any service, financial aid, or other benefit under the program;
- 4. Restricting a person in the enjoyment of any advantages, privileges, or other benefits enjoyed by others receiving any service, financial aid, or other benefit under the program;
- 5. Treating a person differently from others in determining whether that person satisfies any admission, enrollment, quota, eligibility, membership, or other requirement or condition which persons must meet to be provided any service, financial aid, or other benefit provided under the program;
- 6. Implementing different standards, criteria, or other requirements for admission, enrollment, or participation in planning, advisory, contractual, or other integral activities to the program;
- 7. Adopting methods of administration which, directly or through contractual relationships, would defeat or substantially impair the accomplishment of effective nondiscrimination;
- 8. Selecting a site or location of facilities with the purpose or effect of excluding persons from, denying them the benefits of, subjecting them to discrimination, or with the purpose or effect of defeating or substantially impairing the accomplishment of the objectives of Title VI or related acts and regulations;
- 9. Discriminating against any person, either directly or through a contractual agreement, in any employment resulting from the program, a primary objective of which is to provide employment;
- 10. Committing acts of intimidation or retaliation, including threatening, coercing, or discriminating against any individual for the purpose of interfering with any right or privilege secured by any pertinent nondiscrimination law, or because an individual made a complaint, testified, assisted, or participated in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing.

III. Reporting & Enforcement

1. The Town of River Bend shall cooperate in any enforcement or compliance review activities by the Department of the Treasury. Enforcement may include investigation, arbitration, mediation, litigation, and monitoring of any settlement agreements that

may result from these actions. The Town of River Bend shall comply with information requests, on-site compliance reviews, and reporting requirements.

- 2. The Town of River Bend shall maintain a complaint log and inform the Treasury of any complaints of discrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin (including limited English proficiency covered by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and implementing regulations and provide, upon request, a list of all such reviews or proceedings based on the complaint, whether pending or completed, including the outcome. The Town of River Bend shall inform the Treasury if it has received no complaints under Title VI.
- 3. Any person who believes they have been aggrieved by a discriminatory practice under Title VI has a right to file a formal complaint with the Treasury. Any such complaint must be in writing and filed with the Treasury's Title VI Coordinator within one hundred eighty (180) days following the date of the alleged discriminatory occurrence.
- 4. Any person who believes that because of that person's race, color, national origin, limited English proficiency, familial status, sex, age, religion, or disability that he/she/they have been discriminated against or unfairly treated by the Town of River Bend in violation of this policy should contact the following office within 180 days from the date of the alleged discriminatory occurrence:

The Town Manager of the Town of River Bend shall be responsible for overseeing any complaints of this policy. The Town Manager may be contacted at:

Delane Jackson, Town Manager
45 Shoreline Drive
River Bend NC 28562
252-638-3870 ext. 213 manager@ri

manager@riverbendnc.org

Adopted this 14th day of April, 2022

John R. Kirkland, Mayor

NCORPORATED

ATTEST:

Kristie J. Nobles, Town Clerk

ELIGIBLE PROJECT POLICY FOR THE EXPENDITURE OF AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT OF 2021 CORONAVIRUS STATE AND LOCAL FISCAL RECOVERY FUNDS BY TOWN OF RIVER BEND

WHEREAS the Town of River Bend, has received an allocation of funds from the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds of H.R. 1319 American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARP/CSLFRF); and

WHEREAS US Treasury is responsible for implementing ARP/CSLFRF and has enacted a Final Rule outlining eligible projects; and

WHEREAS the funds may be used for projects within these categories, to the extent authorized by state law.

- 1. Support COVID-19 public health expenditures, by funding COVID-19 mitigation and prevention efforts, medical expenses, behavioral healthcare, preventing and responding to violence, and certain public health and safety staff;
- Address negative economic impacts caused by the public health emergency, including economic harms to households, small businesses, non-profits, impacted industries, and the public sector;
- 3. Replace lost public sector revenue, using this funding to provide government services to the extent of the reduction in revenue experienced due to the pandemic;
- 4. Provide premium pay for essential workers, offering additional support to those who have borne and will bear the greatest health risks because of their service in critical infrastructure sectors; and,
- 5. Invest in water, sewer, and broadband infrastructure, making necessary investments to improve access to clean drinking water, support vital wastewater and stormwater infrastructure, and to expand access to broadband internet; and

WHEREAS the ARP/CSLFRF are subject to the provisions of the federal Uniform Grant Guidance, 2 CFR Part 200 (UG), as provided in the <u>Assistance Listing</u>; and

WHEREAS US Treasury has issued a <u>Compliance and Reporting Guidance v.2.1</u> (<u>November 15, 2021</u>) dictating implementation of the ARP/CSLFRF award terms and compliance requirements; and

WHEREAS the Compliance and Reporting Guidance states on page 6 that

Per 2 CFR Part 200.303, your organization must develop and implement effective internal controls to ensure that funding decisions under the SLFRF award constitute eligible uses of funds, and document determinations.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Town of River Bend hereby adopts and enacts the following Eligibility Determination Policy for ARP/CSLFRF funds.

Eligibility Determination Policy for American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds

This policy defines the permissible and prohibited uses of the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds of H.R. 1319 American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARP/CSLFRF) funds. It also outlines the procedures for determining how the Town of River Bend will spend its ARP/CSLFRF funds.

I. PERMISSIBLE USES OF ARP/CSLFRF FUNDING

US Treasury issued its <u>Final Rule</u> regarding use of ARPA funds on January 6, 2022. (The Final Rule is effective as of April 1, 2022. Until that date, a local government may proceed under the regulation promulgated by US Department of the Treasury in its <u>Interim Final Rule</u> or the Final Rule.) The Final Rule (and the Interim Final Rule) identify permissible uses of ARP/CSLFRF funds and certain limitations and process requirements. Local governments must allocate ARP/CSLFRF funds no later than December 31, 2024 and disburse all funding no later than December 31, 2026. Failure of an entity to expend all funds by December 31, 2026 will result in forfeiture of ARPA funds.

ARP/CSLFRF funds may be used for projects within the following categories of expenditures:

- 1. Support COVID-19 public health expenditures, by funding COVID-19 mitigation and prevention efforts, medical expenses, behavioral healthcare, preventing and responding to violence, and certain public health and safety staff;
- 2. Address negative economic impacts caused by the public health emergency, including economic harms to workers, households, small businesses, non-profits, impacted industries, and the public sector;
- 3. Replace lost public sector revenue, using this funding to provide government services to the extent of the reduction in revenue experienced due to the pandemic;
- 4. Provide premium pay for essential workers, offering additional support to those who have borne and will bear the greatest health risks because of their service in critical infrastructure sectors; and
- 5. Invest in water, sewer, and broadband infrastructure, making necessary investments to improve access to clean drinking water, support vital wastewater and stormwater infrastructure, and to expand access to broadband internet; and

II. PROHIBITED USES OF ARPA FUNDING

The ARP/CSLFRF and US Treasury's Final Rule prohibit certain uses of ARP/CSLFRF funds. Specifically, ARP/CSLFRF funds may not be used for projects within the following categories of expenditures:

1. To make a deposit into a pension fund that constitutes an extraordinary payment of an accrued, unfunded liability (Note that routine contributions as part of a payroll obligation for an eligible project are allowed.);

- 2. To borrow money or make debt service payments;
- 3. To replenish rainy day funds or fund other financial reserves;
- 4. To satisfy an obligation arising from a settlement agreement, judgment, consent decree, or judicially confirmed debt restricting in a judicial, administrative, or regulatory proceeding (There is an exception to this prohibition if the settlement or judgment requires the Town of River Bend to provide services to respond to the COVID-19 public health emergency or its negative economic impacts or to provide government services, then the costs of those otherwise ARP/CSLFRF-eligible projects are allowed.);
- For a project that includes a term or condition that undermines efforts to stop the spread of COVID-19 or discourages compliance with recommendations and guidelines in CDC guidance for stopping the spread of COVID-19;
- 6. In violation of the conflict-of-interest requirements imposed by the award terms and 2 CFR 200.318(c).
- 7. For any expenditure that would violate other applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations.

The Town of River Bend, and any of its contractors or subrecipients, may not expend any ARP/CSLFRF funds for these purposes.

III. PROCEDURES FOR PROJECT APPROVAL

The following are procedures for ARP/CSLFRF project approvals. All Town of River Bend employees and officials must comply with these requirements.

- Requests for ARP/CSLFRF funding, must be made in writing and include all the following:
 - a. Brief description of the project
 - b. Identification of ARP/CSLFRF Expenditure Category (EC) (A list of ECs in in the Appendix to the <u>US Treasury Compliance and Reporting Guidance</u>.)
 - c. Required justifications for applicable projects, according to the requirements in the Final Rule. Employees or any applicant seeking ARPA funding should review the Final Rule and Final Rule Overview prior to submitting a proposal.
 - d. Proposed budget, broken down by cost item, in accordance with the Town of River Bend's Allowable Cost Policy.
 - e. A project implementation plan and estimated implementation timeline (All ARP/CSLFRF funds must be fully obligated by December 31, 2024, and fully expended by December 31, 2026.)
- 2. Requests for funding must be submitted to Delane Jackson for approval. All requests will be reviewed by Delane Jackson for ARP/CSLFRF compliance and by Amanda Gilbert for allowable costs and other financial review.
- 3. No ARP/CSLFRF may be obligated or expended before final written approval by Delane Jackson. BOARD APPROVAL AND BUDGET AMENDMENTS WILL BE REQUIRED BEFORE APPROVAL
- 4. If a proposal does not meet the required criteria, it will be returned to the requesting party for revision and resubmittal.

- 5. Following approval, employees responsible for implementing the project must conform actual obligations and expenditures to the pre-approved project budget. Changes in project budgets must be approved by Delane Jackson and may require a budget amendment before proceeding. Any delay in the projected project completion date shall be communicated to Delane Jackson immediately.
- 6. Delane Jackson must collect and document required information for each EC, for purposes of completing the required Project and Expenditure reports.
- 7. Delane Jackson must maintain written project requests and approvals, all supporting documentation, and financial information at least until December 31, 2031.

Adopted this 14th day of April, 2022

John R. Kirkland, Mayor

ATTEST:

Kristie J. Nobles, Town Clerk



Record Retention Policy: Documents Created or Maintained Pursuant to the ARP/CSLFRF Award

<u>Retention of Records</u>: The Coronavirus Local Fiscal Recovery Funds ("CSLFRF") Award Terms and Conditions and the Compliance and Reporting Guidance set forth the U.S. Department of Treasury's ("Treasury") record retention requirements for the ARP/CSLFRF award.

It is the policy of the Town of River Bend to follow Treasury's record retention requirements as it expends CSLFRF pursuant to the APR/CSLFRF award. Accordingly, the Town of River Bend agrees to the following:

- Retain all financial and programmatic records related to the use and expenditure of CSLFRF pursuant to the ARP/CSLFRF award for a <u>period of five (5) years</u> after all CLFRF funds have been expended or returned to Treasury, whichever is later.
- Retain records for real property and equipment acquired with CSLFRF for five years after final disposition.
- Ensure that the financial and programmatic records retained sufficiently evidence compliance with section 603(c) of the Social Security Act "ARPA," Treasury's regulations implementing that section, and guidance issued by Treasury regarding the foregoing.
- Allow the Treasury Office of Inspector General and the Government Accountability
 Office, or their authorized representatives, the right of timely and unrestricted access to
 any records for the purpose of audits or other investigations.
- If any litigation, claim, or audit is started before the expiration of the 5-year period, the records will be retained until all litigation, claims, or audit findings involving the records have been resolved.

<u>Covered Records:</u> For purposes of this policy, records are information, regardless of physical form or characteristics, that are created, received, or retained that evidence the Town of River Bend's expenditure of CSLFRF funds on eligible projects, programs, or activities pursuant to the ARP/CSLFRF award.

Records that shall be retained pursuant to this policy include, but are not limited to, the following:

- Financial statements and accounting records evidencing expenditures of CSLFRF for eligible projects, programs, or activities.
- Documentation of rational to support a particular expenditure of CSLFRF (e.g., expenditure constitutes a general government service);
- Documentation of administrative costs charged to the ARP/CSLFRF award;
- Procurement documents evidencing the significant history of a procurement, including, at a minimum, the rationale for the method of procurement, selection of contract type, contractor selection or rejection, and the basis for contract cost or price;
- Subaward agreements and documentation of subrecipient monitoring;
- Documentation evidencing compliance with the Uniform Guidance property management standards set forth in 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.310-316 and 200.329;
- Personnel and payroll records for full-time and part-time employees compensated with CSLFRF, including time and effort reports; and
- Indirect cost rate proposals

Storage: Town of River Bend's records must be stored in a safe, secure, and accessible manner. Wherever practicable, such records should be collected, transmitted, and stored in open and machine-readable formats.

<u>Departmental Responsibilities</u>: Any department or unit of the Town of River Bend, and its employees, who are responsible for creating or maintaining the covered documents in this policy shall comply with the terms of this policy. Failure to do so may subject the Town of River Bend to civil and/or criminal liability. Any employee who fails to comply with the record retention requirements set forth herein may be subject to disciplinary sanctions, including suspension or termination.

The Town Manager is responsible for identifying the documents that Town of River Bend must or should retain and arrange for the proper storage and retrieval of records. Town Manager shall also ensure that all personnel subject to the terms of this policy are aware of the record retention requirements set forth herein.

Reporting Policy Violations: The Town of River Bend is committed to enforcing this policy as it applies to all forms of records. Any employee that suspects the terms of this policy have been violated shall report the incident immediately to that employee's supervisor. If an employee is not comfortable bringing the matter up with the supervisor, the employee may bring the matter to the attention of the Mayor. The Town of River Bend prohibits, any form of discipline, reprisal, intimidation, or retaliation for reporting incidents of inappropriate conduct of any kind, pursuing any record destruction claim, or cooperating in related investigations.

<u>Questions About the Policy</u>: Any questions about this policy should be referred to: Town Manager, Delane Jackson [252-638-3820 ext. 213 manager@riverbendnc.org], who is in charge of administering, enforcing, and updating this policy.

Adopted this 14th day of April, 2022

John Kirkland, Mayor

ATTEST:

Kristie J. Nobles, Town Clerk

POLICY FOR ALLOWABLE COSTS AND COST PRINCIPLES FOR EXPENDITURE OF AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT CORONAVIRUS STATE AND LOCAL FISCAL RECOVERY FUNDS BY NORTH CAROLINA LOCAL GOVERNMENTS

WHEREAS the Town of River Bend has received an allocation of funds from the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds of H.R. 1319 American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARP/CSLFRF); and

WHEREAS the funds may be used for projects within these categories, to the extent authorized by state law.

- 1. Support COVID-19 public health expenditures, by funding COVID-19 mitigation and prevention efforts, medical expenses, behavioral healthcare, preventing and responding to violence, and certain public health and safety staff;
- 2. Address negative economic impacts caused by the public health emergency, including economic harms to households, small businesses, non-profits, impacted industries, and the public sector;
- 3. Replace lost public sector revenue, using this funding to provide government services to the extent of the reduction in revenue experienced due to the pandemic;
- 4. Provide premium pay for essential workers, offering additional support to those who have borne and will bear the greatest health risks because of their service in critical infrastructure sectors; and,
- 5. Invest in water, sewer, and broadband infrastructure, making necessary investments to improve access to clean drinking water, support vital wastewater and stormwater infrastructure, and to expand access to broadband internet.

WHEREAS the ARP/CSLFRF are subject to the provisions of the federal Uniform Grant Guidance, 2 CFR Sect. 200 (UG), as provided in the <u>Assistance Listing</u>; and

WHEREAS the <u>Compliance and Reporting Guidance for the State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds</u> provides, in relevant part:

Allowable Costs/Cost Principles. As outlined in the Uniform Guidance at 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart E regarding Cost Principles, allowable costs are based on the premise that a recipient is responsible for the effective administration of Federal awards, application of sound management practices, and administration of Federal funds in a manner consistent with the program objectives and terms and conditions of the award. Recipients must implement robust internal controls and effective monitoring to ensure compliance with the Cost Principles, which are important for building trust and accountability.

ARP/CSLFRF Funds may be, but are not required to be, used along with other funding sources for a given project. Note that ARP/CSLFRF Funds may not be used for a non-Federal cost share or match where prohibited by other Federal programs, e.g., funds may not be used for the State share for Medicaid.

Treasury's Interim Final Rule and guidance and the Uniform Guidance outline the types of costs that are allowable, including certain audit costs. For example, per 2 CFR 200.425, a reasonably proportionate share of the costs of audits required by the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 are allowable; however, costs for audits that were not performed in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F are not allowable. Please see 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart E regarding the Cost Principles for more information.

- a. Administrative costs: Recipients may use funds for administering the SLFRF program, including costs of consultants to support effective management and oversight, including consultation for ensuring compliance with legal, regulatory, and other requirements. Further, costs must be reasonable and allocable as outlined in 2 CFR 200.404 and 2 CFR 200.405. Pursuant to the ARP/CSLFRF Award Terms and Conditions, recipients are permitted to charge both direct and indirect costs to their SLFRF award as administrative costs. Direct costs are those that are identified specifically as costs of implementing the ARP/CSLFRF program objectives, such as contract support, materials, and supplies for a project. Indirect costs are general overhead costs of an organization where a portion of such costs are allocable to the ARP/CSLFRF award such as the cost of facilities or administrative functions like a director's office. Each category of cost should be treated consistently in like circumstances as direct or indirect, and recipients may not charge the same administrative costs to both direct and indirect cost categories, or to other programs. If a recipient has a current Negotiated Indirect Costs Rate Agreement (NICRA) established with a Federal cognizant agency responsible for reviewing, negotiating, and approving cost allocation plans or indirect cost proposals, then the recipient may use its current NICRA. Alternatively, if the recipient does not have a NICRA, the recipient may elect to use the de minimis rate of 10 percent of the modified total direct costs pursuant to 2 CFR 200.414(f).
- b. <u>Salaries and Expenses</u>: In general, certain employees' wages, salaries, and covered benefits are an eligible use of ARP/CSLFRF award funds; and

WHEREAS Subpart E of the UG dictates allowable costs and cost principles for expenditure of ARP/CSLFRF funds; and

WHEREAS Subpart E of the UG (specifically, 200.400) states that:

The application of these cost principles is based on the fundamental premises that:

- (a) The non-Federal entity is responsible for the efficient and effective administration of the Federal award through the application of sound management practices.
- (b) The non-Federal entity assumes responsibility for administering Federal funds in a manner consistent with underlying agreements, program objectives, and the terms and conditions of the Federal award.

- (c) The non-Federal entity, in recognition of its own unique combination of staff, facilities, and experience, has the primary responsibility for employing whatever form of sound organization and management techniques may be necessary in order to assure proper and efficient administration of the Federal award.
- (d) The application of these cost principles should require no significant changes in the internal accounting policies and practices of the non-Federal entity. However, the accounting practices of the non-Federal entity must be consistent with these cost principles and support the accumulation of costs as required by the principles, and must provide for adequate documentation to support costs charged to the Federal award.
- (e) In reviewing, negotiating and approving cost allocation plans or indirect cost proposals, the cognizant agency for indirect costs should generally assure that the non-Federal entity is applying these cost accounting principles on a consistent basis during their review and negotiation of indirect cost proposals. Where wide variations exist in the treatment of a given cost item by the non-Federal entity, the reasonableness and equity of such treatments should be fully considered.
- (f) For non-Federal entities that educate and engage students in research, the dual role of students as both trainees and employees (including pre- and post-doctoral staff) contributing to the completion of Federal awards for research must be recognized in the application of these principles.
- (g) The non-Federal entity may not earn or keep any profit resulting from Federal financial assistance, unless explicitly authorized by the terms and conditions of the Federal award;

BE IT RESOLVED that the governing board of the Town of River Bend hereby adopts and enacts the following UG Allowable Costs and Cost Principles Policy for the expenditure of ARP/CSLFRF funds.

Adopted this 14th day of April, 2022

John R. Kirkland, Mayor

1981

ATTEST:

Kristie J. Nobles, Town Clerk

Town of River Bend Allowable Costs and Costs Principles Policy

ALLOWABLE COSTS AND COSTS PRINCIPLES POLICY OVERVIEW

Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, commonly called Uniform Guidance (UG), specifically Subpart E, defines those items of cost that are allowable, and which are unallowable. The tests of allowability under these principles are: (a) the costs must be reasonable; (b) they must be allocable to eligible projects under the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds of H.R. 1319 American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARP/CSLFRF); (c) they must be given consistent treatment through application of those generally accepted accounting principles appropriate to the circumstances; and (d) they must conform to any limitations or exclusions set forth in these principles or in the ARP/CSLFRF grant award as to types or amounts of cost items. Unallowable items fall into two categories: expenses which are by their nature unallowable (e.g., alcohol), and unallowable activities (e.g., fund raising).

The Town of River Bend shall adhere to all applicable cost principles governing the use of federal grants. This policy addresses the proper classification of both direct and indirect charges to ARP/CSLFRF funded projects and enacts procedures to ensure that proposed and actual expenditures are consistent with the ARP/CSLFRF grant award terms and all applicable federal regulations in the UG.

Responsibility for following these guidelines lies with the Town Manager and Finance Director, who are charged with the administration and financial oversight of the ARP/CSLFRF. Further, all local government employees and officials who are involved in obligating, administering, expending, or monitoring ARP/CSLFRF grant funded projects should be well versed with the categories of costs that are generally allowable and unallowable. Questions on the allowability of costs should be directed to the Town Manager. As questions on allowability of certain costs may require interpretation and judgment, local government personnel are encouraged to ask for assistance in making those determinations.

II. GENERAL COST ALLOWABILITY CRITERIA

All costs expended using ARP/CSLFRF funds must meet the following general criteria:

1. Be necessary and reasonable for the proper and efficient performance and administration of the grant program.

A cost must be *necessary* to achieve a project object. When determining whether a cost is necessary, consideration may be given to:

- Whether the cost is needed for the proper and efficient performance of the grant project.
- Whether the cost is identified in the approved project budget or application.
- Whether the cost aligns with identified needs based on results and findings from a needs assessment.

• Whether the cost addresses project goals and objectives and is based on program data.

A cost is *reasonable* if, in its nature and amount, it does not exceed that which would be incurred by a prudent person under the circumstances prevailing at the time the decision to incur the cost was made. For example, reasonable means that sound business practices were followed, and purchases were comparable to market prices. When determining reasonableness of a cost, consideration must be given to:

- Whether the cost is a type generally recognized as ordinary and necessary for the operation of the Town of River Bend or the proper and efficient performance of the federal award.
- The restraints or requirements imposed by factors, such as: sound business practices; arm's-length bargaining; federal, state, and other laws and regulations; and terms and conditions of the ARP/CSLFRF award.
- Market prices for comparable goods or services for the geographic area.
- Whether individuals concerned acted with prudence in the circumstances considering their responsibilities to the Town of River Bend, its employees, the public at large, and the federal government.
- Whether the Town of River Bend significantly deviates from its established practices and policies regarding the incurrence of costs, which may unjustifiably increase the ARP/CSLFRF award's cost.
- 2. Be allocable to the ARP/CSLFRF federal award. A cost is allocable to the ARP/CSLFRF award if the goods or services involved are chargeable or assignable to the ARP/CSLFRF award in accordance with the relative benefit received. This means that the ARP/CSLFRF grant program derived a benefit in proportion to the funds charged to the program. For example, if 50 percent of a local government program officer's salary is paid with grant funds, then the local government must document that the program officer spent at least 50 percent of his/her time on the grant program.

If a cost benefits two or more projects or activities in proportions that can be determined without undue effort or cost, the cost must be allocated to the projects based on the proportional benefit. If a cost benefits two or more projects or activities in proportions that cannot be determined because of the interrelationship of the work involved, then the costs may be allocated or transferred to benefitted projects on any reasonable documented basis. Where the purchase of equipment or other capital asset is specifically authorized by the ARP/CSLFRF, the costs are assignable to the Federal award regardless of the use that may be made of the equipment or other capital asset involved when no longer needed for the purpose for which it was originally required.

3. Be authorized and not prohibited under state or local laws or regulations.

- 4. Conform to any limitations or exclusions set forth in the principles, federal laws, ARP/CSLFRF award terms, and other governing regulations as to types or amounts of cost items.
- 5. Be consistent with policies, regulations, and procedures that apply uniformly to both the ARP/CSLFRF federal award and other activities of the Town of River Bend.
- **6. Be accorded consistent treatment.** A cost MAY NOT be assigned to a federal award as a direct cost and also be charged to a federal award as an indirect cost. And a cost must be treated consistently for both federal award and non-federal award expenditures.
- 7. Be determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), unless provided otherwise in the UGG.
- 8. Be net of all applicable credits. The term "applicable credits" refers to those receipts or reduction of expenditures that operate to offset or reduce expense items allocable to the federal award. Typical examples of such transactions are purchase discounts; rebates or allowances; recoveries or indemnities on losses; and adjustments of overpayments or erroneous charges. To the extent that such credits accruing to and received by the local government related to the federal award, they shall be credited to the ARP/CSLFRF award, either as a cost reduction or a cash refund, as appropriate and consistent with the award terms.
- 9. Be adequately documented.

III. SELECTED ITEMS OF COST

The UGG examines the allowability of fifty-five (55) specific cost items (commonly referred to as Selected Items of Cost) at 2 CFR § 200.420-.475.

[DEPARTMENT OR POSITION(S)] responsible for determining cost allowability must be familiar with the Selected Items of Cost. The Town of River Bend must follow the applicable regulations when charging these specific expenditures to the ARP/CSLFRF grant. The Finance Department will check costs against the selected items of cost requirements to ensure the cost is allowable and that all process and documentation requirements are followed. In addition, State laws, Town of River Bend <u>regulations</u>, and program-specific rules may deem a cost as unallowable, and Finance Department personnel must follow those non-federal rules as well.

Exhibit A identifies and summarizes the Selected Items of Cost.

IV. DIRECT AND INDIRECT COSTS

Allowable and allocable costs must be appropriately classified as direct or indirect charges. It is essential that each item of cost be treated consistently in like circumstances either as a direct or an indirect cost.

Direct costs are expenses that are specifically associated with a particular ARP/CSLFRF-eligible project and that can be directly assigned to such activities relatively easily with a high degree of accuracy. Common examples of direct costs include salary and fringe benefits of personnel directly involved in undertaking an eligible project, equipment and supplies for the project,

subcontracted service provider, or other materials consumed or expended in the performance of a grant-eligible project.

Indirect costs are (1) costs incurred for a common or joint purpose benefitting more than one ARP/CSLFRF-eligible project, and (2) not readily assignable to the project specifically benefited, without effort disproportionate to the results achieved. They are expenses that benefit more than one project or even more than one federal grant. Common examples of indirect costs include utilities, local telephone charges, shared office supplies, administrative or secretarial salaries.

For indirect costs, the Town of River Bend may charge a 10 percent de minimis rate of modified total direct costs (MTDC). According to UGG Section 200.68 MTDC means all direct salaries and wages, applicable fringe benefits, materials and supplies, services, travel, and up to the first \$25,000 of each subaward (regardless of the period of performance the subawards under the award). MTDC EXCLUDES equipment, capital expenditures, charges for patient care, rental costs, tuition remission, scholarships and fellowships, participant support costs and the portion of each subaward in excess of \$25,000.

V. SPECIAL PROVISIONS FOR STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENTS

There are some special provisions of the UG that apply only to states, local governments, and Indian Tribes.

§ 200.444 General costs of government.

- (a) For states, local governments, and Indian Tribes, the general costs of government are unallowable (except as provided in § 200.475). Unallowable costs include:
 - (1) Salaries and expenses of the Office of the Governor of a <u>state</u> or the chief executive of a <u>local government</u> or the chief executive of an <u>Indian tribe</u>;
 - (2) Salaries and other expenses of a <u>state</u> legislature, tribal council, or similar local governmental body, such as a county supervisor, city council, school board, etc., whether incurred for purposes of legislation or executive direction;
 - (3) Costs of the judicial branch of a government;
 - (4) Costs of prosecutorial activities unless treated as a direct cost to a specific program if authorized by statute or regulation (however, this does not preclude the allowability of other legal activities of the Attorney General as described in § 200.435); and
 - (5) Costs of other general types of government services normally provided to the general public, such as fire and police, unless provided for as a direct cost under a program statute or regulation.
- **(b)** For <u>Indian tribes</u> and Councils of Governments (COGs) (see definition for *Local government* in § 200.1 of this part), up to 50% of salaries and expenses directly attributable to managing and operating <u>Federal programs</u> by the chief executive and his or her staff can be included in the indirect cost calculation without documentation.

§ 200.416 COST ALLOCATION PLANS AND INDIRECT COST PROPOSALS.

- (a) For states, local governments and Indian tribes, certain services, such as motor pools, computer centers, purchasing, accounting, etc., are provided to operating agencies on a centralized basis. Since Federal awards are performed within the individual operating agencies, there needs to be a process whereby these central service costs can be identified and assigned to benefitted activities on a reasonable and consistent basis. The central service cost allocation plan provides that process.
- (b) Individual operating agencies (governmental department or agency), normally charge Federal awards for indirect costs through an indirect cost rate. A separate indirect cost rate(s) proposal for each operating agency is usually necessary to claim indirect costs under Federal awards. Indirect costs include:
 - (1) The indirect costs originating in each department or agency of the governmental unit carrying out Federal awards and
 - (2) The costs of central governmental services distributed through the central service cost allocation plan and not otherwise treated as direct costs.
- (c) The requirements for development and submission of cost allocation plans (for central service costs and public assistance programs) and indirect cost rate proposals are contained in appendices V, VI and VII to this part.

§ 200.417 Interagency service.

The cost of services provided by one agency to another within the governmental unit may include allowable direct costs of the service plus a pro-rated share of indirect costs. A standard indirect cost allowance equal to ten percent of the direct salary and wage cost of providing the service (excluding overtime, shift premiums, and fringe benefits) may be used in lieu of determining the actual indirect costs of the service. These services do not include centralized services included in central service cost allocation plans as described in Appendix V to Part 200.

VI. COST ALLOWABILITY REVIEW PROCESS

PREAPPROVAL COST ALLOWABILITY REVIEW

Before an ARP/CSLFRF-funded project is authorized, the Finance Director must review the proposed cost items within an estimated project budget to determine whether they are allowable and allocable and whether cost items will be charged as direct or indirect expenses. This review will occur concurrently with the review of project eligibility and *before* obligating or expending any ARP/CSLFRF funds.

- Local government personnel must submit proposed ARP/CSLFRF projects to the Finance Director for review. In addition to other required information, all proposed project submissions must delineate estimated costs by cost item.
- Along with a general review of project eligibility and conformance with other governing board management directives, the Finance Director must review estimated costs for specific allowable cost requirements, budget parameters, indirect rates, fringe benefit rates, and those activities/costs that require pre-approval by the US Treasury.
- If a proposed project includes a request for an unallowable cost, the Finance Director will return the proposal to the requesting party for review and, if practicable, resubmission with corrected cost items.
- Once a proposed project budget is pre-approved by the Finance Director, the local government personnel responsible for implementing the project must conform actual obligations and expenditures to the pre-approved project budget.

POST-EXPENDITURE COST ALLOWABILITY REVIEW

Once an expenditure is incurred related to an eligible project, and an invoice or other demand for payment is submitted to the local government, the Finance Director must perform a second review to ensure that actual expenditures comprise allowable costs.

- All invoices or other demands for payment must include a breakdown by cost item. The cost items should mirror those presented in the proposed budget for the project. If an invoice or other demand for payment does not include a breakdown by cost item, the Finance Director will return the invoice to the project manager and/or vendor, contractor, or subrecipient for correction.
- The [DEPARTMENT AND/OR INDIVIDUAL POSITION(S)] must review the individual cost items listed on the invoice or other demand for payment to determine their allowability and allocability.
- If all cost items are deemed allowable and properly allocable, the Finance Department must proceed through the local government's normal disbursement process.
- If any cost item is deemed unallowable, the Finance Director will notify the project management and/or vendor, contractor, or subrecipient that a portion of the invoice or other demand for payment will not be paid with ARP/CSLFRF funds. The Finance Director may in their discretion, and consistent with this policy, allow an invoice or other

demand for payment to be resubmitted with a revised cost allocation. If the local government remains legally obligated by contract or otherwise to pay the disallowed cost item, it must identify other local government funds to cover the disbursement. Town of River Bend's governing board must approve any allocation of other funds for this purpose.

• The Finance Department must retain appropriate documentation of budgeted cost items per project and actual obligations and expenditures of cost items per project.

VII. COST TRANSFERS

Any costs charged to the ARP/CSLFRF federal award that do not meet the allowable cost criteria must be removed from the award account and charged to an account that does not require adherence to federal UGG or other applicable guidelines.

Failure to adequately follow this policy and related procedures could result in questioned costs, audit findings, potential repayment of disallowed costs and discontinuance of funding.

EXHIBIT A

Selected Items of Cost	Uniform Guidance General Reference	Allowability
Advertising and public relations costs	2 CFR § 200.421	Allowable with restrictions
Advisory councils	2 CFR § 200.422	Allowable with restrictions
Alcoholic beverages	2 CFR § 200.423	Unallowable
Alumni/ae activities	2 CFR § 200.424	Not specifically addressed
Audit services	2 CFR § 200.425	Allowable with restrictions
Bad debts	2 CFR § 200.426	Unallowable
Bonding costs	2 CFR § 200.427	Allowable with restrictions
Collection of improper payments	2 CFR § 200.428	Allowable
Commencement and convocation costs	2 CFR § 200.429	Not specifically addressed
Compensation – personal services	2 CFR § 200.430	Allowable with restrictions; Special conditions apply (e.g., § 200.430(i)(5))
Compensation – fringe benefits	2 CFR § 200.431	Allowable with restrictions
Conferences	2 CFR § 200.432	Allowable with restrictions
Contingency provisions	2 CFR § 200.433	Unallowable with exceptions
Contributions and donations	2 CFR § 200.434	Unallowable (made by non-federal entity); not reimbursable but value may be used as cost sharing or matching (made to non-federal entity)
Defense and prosecution of criminal and civil proceedings, claims, appeals and patent	2 CFR § 200.435	Allowable with restrictions

infringements		
Depreciation	2 CFR § 200.436	Allowable with qualifications
Employee health and welfare costs	2 CFR § 200.437	Allowable with restrictions
Entertainment costs	2 CFR § 200.438	Unallowable with exceptions
Equipment and other capital expenditures	2 CFR § 200.439	Allowability based on specific requirement
Exchange rates	2 CFR § 200.440	Allowable with restrictions
Fines, penalties, damages and other settlements	2 CFR § 200.441	Unallowable with exceptions
Fund raising and investment management costs	2 CFR § 200.442	Unallowable with exceptions
Gains and losses on disposition of depreciable assets	2 CFR § 200.443	Allowable with restrictions
General costs of government	2 CFR § 200.444	Unallowable with exceptions
Goods and services for personal use	2 CFR § 200.445	Unallowable (goods/services); allowable (housing) with restrictions
Idle facilities and idle capacity	2 CFR § 200.446	Idle facilities - unallowable with exceptions; Idle capacity - allowable with restrictions
Insurance and indemnification	2 CFR § 200.447	Allowable with restrictions
Intellectual property	2 CFR § 200.448	Allowable with restrictions
Interest	2 CFR § 200.449	Allowable with restrictions
Lobbying	2 CFR § 200.450	Unallowable
Losses on other awards or contracts	2 CFR § 200.451	Unallowable (however, they are required to be included in the indirect cost rate base for

		allocation of indirect costs)
Maintenance and repair costs	2 CFR § 200.452	Allowable with restrictions
Materials and supplies costs, including costs of computing devices	2 CFR § 200.453	Allowable with restrictions
Memberships, subscriptions, and professional activity costs	2 CFR § 200.454	Allowable with restrictions; unallowable for lobbying organizations
Organization costs	2 CFR § 200.455	Unallowable except federal prior approval
Participant support costs	2 CFR § 200.456	Allowable with prior approval of the federal awarding agency
Plant and security costs	2 CFR § 200.457	Allowable; capital expenditures are subject to § 200.439
Pre-award costs	2 CFR § 200.458	Allowable if consistent with other allowabilities and with prior approval of the federal awarding agency
Professional services costs	2 CFR § 200.459	Allowable with restrictions
Proposal costs	2 CFR § 200.460	Allowable with restrictions
Publication and printing costs	2 CFR § 200.461	Allowable with restrictions
Rearrangement and reconversion costs	2 CFR § 200.462	Allowable (ordinary and normal)
Recruiting costs	2 CFR § 200.463	Allowable with restrictions
Relocation costs of employees	2 CFR § 200.464	Allowable with restrictions
Rental costs of real property and equipment	2 CFR § 200.465	Allowable with restrictions
Scholarships and student aid costs	2 CFR § 200.466	Not specifically addressed
Selling and marketing costs	2 CFR § 200.467	Unallowable with exceptions

Specialized service facilities	2 CFR § 200.468	Allowable with restrictions
Student activity costs	2 CFR § 200.469	Unallowable unless specifically provided for in the federal award
Taxes (including Value Added Tax)	2 CFR § 200.470	Allowable with restrictions
Termination costs	2 CFR § 200.471	Allowable with restrictions
Training and education costs	2 CFR § 200.472	Allowable for employee development
Transportation costs	2 CFR § 200.473	Allowable with restrictions
Travel costs	2 CFR § 200.474	Allowable with restrictions
Trustees	2 CFR § 200.475	Not specifically addressed

CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY

APPLICABLE TO CONTRACTS AND SUBAWARDS OF TOWN OF RIVER BEND SUPPORTED BY FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

I. Scope of Policy

- a. <u>Purpose of Policy</u>. This Conflict of Interest Policy ("*Policy*") establishes conflict of interest standards that (1) apply when Town of River Bend ("*Unit*") enters into a Contract (as defined in <u>Section II</u> hereof) or makes a Subaward (as defined in <u>Section II</u> hereof), and (2) meet or exceed the requirements of North Carolina law and 2 C.F.R. § 200.318(c).
- b. Application of Policy. This Policy shall apply when the Unit (1) enters into a Contract to be funded, in part or in whole, by Federal Financial Assistance to which 2 C.F.R. § 200.318(c) applies, or (2) makes any Subaward to be funded by Federal Financial Assistance to which 2 C.F.R. § 200.318(c) applies. If a federal statute, regulation, or the terms of a financial assistance agreement applicable to a particular form of Federal Financial Assistance conflicts with any provision of this Policy, such federal statute, regulation, or terms of the financial assistance agreement shall govern.

II. **Definitions**

Capitalized terms used in this Policy shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in this <u>Section II</u>: Any capitalized term used in this Policy but not defined in this <u>Section II</u> shall have the meaning set forth in 2 C.F.R. § 200.1.

- a. "COI Point of Contact" means the individual identified in Section III (a) of this Policy.
- b. "Contract" means, for the purpose of Federal Financial Assistance, a legal instrument by which the Unit purchases property or services needed to carry out a program or project under a Federal award.
- c. "Contractor" means an entity or individual that receives a Contract.
- d. "Covered Individual" means a Public Officer, employee, or agent of the Unit.
- e. "Covered Nonprofit Organization" means a nonprofit corporation, organization, or association, incorporated or otherwise, that is organized or operating in the State of North Carolina primarily for religious, charitable, scientific, literary, public health and safety, or educational purposes, excluding any board, entity, or other organization created by the State of North Carolina or any political subdivision of the State (including the Unit).
- f. "Direct Benefit" means, with respect to a Public Officer or employee of the Unit, or the spouse of any such Public Officer or employee, (i) having a ten percent (10%) ownership interest or other interest in a Contract or Subaward; (ii) deriving any income or commission

- directly from a Contract or Subaward; or (iii) acquiring property under a Contract or Subaward.
- g. "Federal Financial Assistance" means Federal financial assistance that the Unit receives or administers in the form of grants, cooperative agreements, non-cash contributions or donations of property (including donated surplus property), direct appropriations, food commodities, and other Federal financial assistance (except that the term does not include loans, loan guarantees, interest subsidies, or insurance).
- h. "Governing Board" means the Town Council of the Unit.
- i. "Immediate Family Member" means, with respect to any Covered Individual, (i) a spouse, and parents thereof, (ii) a child, and parent thereof, (iii) a parent, and spouse thereof, (iv) a sibling, and spouse thereof, (v) a grandparent and grandchild, and spouses thereof, (vi) domestic partners and parents thereof, including domestic partners of any individual in (ii) through (v) of this definition; and (vii) any individual related by blood or affinity whose close association with the Covered Individual is the equivalent of a family relationship.
- j. "Involved in Making or Administering" means (i) with respect to a Public Official or employee, (a) overseeing the performance of a Contract or Subaward or having authority to make decisions regarding a Contract or Subaward or to interpret a Contract or Subaward, or (b) participating in the development of specifications or terms or in the preparation or award of a Contract or Subaward, (ii) only with respect to a Public Official, being a member of a board, commission, or other body of which the Public Official is a member, taking action on the Contract or Subaward, whether or not the Public Official actually participates in that action.
- k. "Pass-Through Entity" means a non-Federal entity that provides a Subaward to a Subrecipient to carry out part of a Federal program.
- 1. "Public Officer" means an individual who is elected or appointed to serve or represent the Unit (including, without limitation, any member of the Governing Board), other than an employee or independent contractor of the Unit.
- m. "Recipient" means an entity, usually but not limited to a non-Federal entity, that receives a Federal award directly from a Federal awarding agency. The term does not include Subrecipients or individuals that are beneficiaries of the award.
- n. "Related Party" means (i) an Immediate Family Member of a Covered Individual, (ii) a partner of a Covered Individual, or (iii) a current or potential employer (other than the Unit) of a Covered Individual, of a partner of a Covered Individual, or of an Immediate Family Member of a Covered Individual.
- o. "Subaward" means an award provided by a Pass-Through Entity to carry out part of a Federal award received by the Pass-Through Entity. It does not include payments to a contractor or payments to a contractor or payments to an individual that is a beneficiary of a Federal program.

- p. "Subcontract" means mean any agreement entered into by a Subcontractor to furnish supplies or services for the performance of a Contract or a Subcontract. It includes, but is not limited to, purchase orders, and changes and modifications to purchase orders.
- q. "Subcontractor" means an entity that receives a Subcontract.
- r. "Subrecipient" means an entity, usually but not limited to a non-Federal entity, that receives a subaward from a Pass-Through Entity to carry out part of a Federal award; but does not include an individual that is a beneficiary of such award. A subrecipient may also be a recipient of other Federal awards directly from a Federal awarding agency.
- s. "Unit" has the meaning specified in <u>Section I</u> hereof.

III. COI Point of Contact.

- a. <u>Appointment of COI Point of Contact</u>. The Town Manager, an employee of the Unit, shall have primary responsibility for managing the disclosure and resolution of potential or actual conflicts of interest arising under this Policy. In the event that Town Manager is unable to serve in such capacity, the Finance Director shall assume responsibility for managing the disclosure and resolution of conflicts of interest arising under this Policy. The individual with responsibility for managing the disclosure and resolution of potential or actual conflicts of interest under this <u>Section III (a)</u> shall be known as the "COI Point of Contact".
- b. <u>Distribution of Policy</u>. The COI Point of Contact shall ensure that each Covered Individual receives a copy of this Policy.

IV. Conflict of Interest Standards in Contracts and Subawards

- a. North Carolina Law. North Carolina law restricts the behavior of Public Officials and employees of the Unit involved in contracting on behalf of the Unit. The Unit shall conduct the selection, award, and administration of Contracts and Subawards in accordance with the prohibitions imposed by the North Carolina General Statutes and restated in this Section III.
 - i. <u>G.S. § 14-234(a)(1)</u>. A Public Officer or employee of the Unit Involved in Making or Administering a Contract or Subaward on behalf of the Unit shall not derive a Direct Benefit from such a Contract or Subaward.
 - ii. G.S. § 14-234(a)(3). No Public Officer or employee of the Unit may solicit or receive any gift, favor, reward, service, or promise of reward, including but not limited to a promise of future employment, in exchange for recommending, influencing, or attempting to influence the award of a Contract or Subaward by the Unit.

- iii. G.S. § 14-234.3. If a member of the Governing Board of the Unit serves as a director, officer, or governing board member of a Covered Nonprofit Organization, such member shall not (1) deliberate or vote on a Contract or Subaward between the Unit and the Covered Nonprofit Corporation, (2) attempt to influence any other person who deliberates or votes on a Contract or Subaward between the Unit and the Covered Nonprofit Corporation, or (3) solicit or receive any gift, favor, reward, service, or promise of future employment, in exchange for recommending or attempting to influence the award of a Contract or Subaward to the Covered Nonprofit Organization.
- iv. G.S. § 14-234.1. A Public Officer or employee of the Unit shall not, in contemplation of official action by the Public Officer or employee, or in reliance on information which was made known to the public official or employee and which has not been made public, (1) acquire a pecuniary interest in any property, transaction, or enterprise or gain any pecuniary benefit which may be affected by such information or other information, or (2) intentionally aid another in violating the provisions of this section.

b. Federal Standards.

- i. <u>Prohibited Conflicts of Interest in Contracting</u>. Without limiting any specific prohibition set forth in <u>Section IV (a)</u>, a Covered Individual may not participate in the selection, award, or administration of a Contract or Subaward if such Covered Individual has a real or apparent conflict of interest.
 - Real Conflict of Interest. A real conflict of interest shall exist when the
 Covered Individual or any Related Party has a financial or other interest
 in or a tangible personal benefit from a firm considered for a Contract or
 Subaward. Exhibit A attached hereto provides a non-exhaustive list of
 examples of (i) financial or other interests in a firm considered for a
 Contract or Subaward, and (ii) tangible personal benefits from a firm
 considered for a Contract or Subaward.
 - 2. Apparent Conflict of Interest. An apparent conflict of interest shall exist where a real conflict of interest may not exist under Section IV (b)(i)(1), but where a reasonable person with knowledge of the relevant facts would find that an existing situation or relationship creates the appearance that a Covered Individual or any Related Party has a financial or other interest in or a tangible personal benefit from a firm considered for a Contract or Subaward.

ii. Identification and Management of Conflicts of Interest.

1. Duty to Disclose and Disclosure Forms

a. Each Covered Individual expected to be or actually involved in the selection, award, or administration of a Contract or Subaward has an ongoing duty to disclose to the COI Point of Contact potential real or apparent conflicts of interest arising under this Policy.

- b. Prior to the Unit's award of a Contract or Subaward, the COI Point of Contact shall advise Covered Individuals expected to be involved in the selection, award, or administration of the Contract or Subaward of such duty.
- c. If the value of a proposed Contract or Subaward exceeds \$250,000, the COI Point of Contact shall collect a Conflict of Interest Disclosure Form contained in <u>Exhibit C</u> (for Contracts) and <u>Exhibit E</u> (for Subawards) from each Covered Individual and file such Conflict of Interest Disclosure Form in records of the Unit.

2. Identification Prior to Award of Contract or Subaward.

a. Prior to the Unit's award of a Contract or Subaward, the COI Point of Contact shall complete the appropriate Compliance Checklist contained in <u>Exhibit B</u> (for Contracts) and <u>Exhibit D</u> (for Subawards) attached hereto and file such Compliance Checklist in the records of the Unit.

3. Management Prior to Award of Contract or Subaward

- a. If, after completing the Compliance Checklist, the COI Point of Contact identifies a potential real or apparent conflict of interest relating to a proposed Contract or Subaward, the COI Point of Contact shall disclose such finding in writing to the Finance Officer and to each member of the Governing Board. If the Governing Board desires to enter into the proposed Contract or Subaward despite the identification by the COI Point of Contact of a potential real or apparent conflict of interest, it may either:
 - accept the finding of the COI Point of Contact and direct the COI Point of Contact to obtain authorization to enter into the Contract or Subaward from (a) if Unit is a Recipient of Federal Financial Assistance, the Federal awarding agency with appropriate mitigation measures, or (b) if Unit is a Subrecipient of Federal Financial Assistance, from the Pass-Through Entity that provided a Subaward to Unit; or
 - ii. reject the finding of the COI Point of Contact and enter into the Contract or Subaward. In rejecting any finding of the COI Point of Contact, the Governing Board shall in

writing document a justification supporting such rejection.

b. If the COI Point of Contact does not identify a potential real or apparent conflict of interest relating to a proposed Contract or Subaward, the Unit may enter into the Contract or Subaward in accordance with the Unit's purchasing or subaward policy.

4. Identification After Award of Contract or Subaward.

a. If the COI Point of Contact discovers that a real or apparent conflict of interest has arisen after the Unit has entered into a Contract or Subaward, the COI Point of Contact shall, as soon as possible, disclose such finding to the Finance Officer and to each member of the Governing Board. Upon discovery of such a real or apparent conflict of interest, the Unit shall cease all payments under the relevant Contract or Subaward until the conflict of interest has been resolved.

5. Management After Award of Contract or Subaward.

- a. Following the receipt of such disclosure of a potential real or apparent conflict of interest pursuant to <u>Section IV(b)(ii)(4)</u>, the Governing Board may reject the finding of the COI Point of Contact by documenting in writing a justification supporting such rejection. If the Governing Board fails to reject the finding of the COI Point of Contact within 15 days of receipt, the COI Point of Contact shall:
 - i. if Unit is a Recipient of Federal Financial Assistance funding the Contract or Subaward, disclose the conflict to the Federal awarding agency providing such Federal Financial Assistance in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.112 and/or applicable regulations of the agency, or
 - ii. if Unit is a Subrecipient of Federal Financial Assistance, disclose the conflict to the Pass-Through Entity providing a Subaward to Unit in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.112 and applicable regulations of the Federal awarding agency and the Pass-Through Entity.

V. Oversight of Subrecipient's Conflict of Interest Standards

a. <u>Subrecipients of Unit Must Adopt Conflict of Interest Policy</u>. Prior to the Unit's execution of any Subaward for which the Unit serves as a Pass-Through Entity, the COI Point of Contact shall ensure that the proposed Subrecipient of Federal Financial Assistance has

- adopted a conflict of interest policy that satisfies the requirements of 2 C.F.R. § 200.318(c)(1), 2 C.F.R. § 200.318(c)(2), and all other applicable federal regulations.
- b. Obligation to Disclose Subrecipient Conflicts of Interest. The COI Point of Contact shall ensure that the legal agreement under which the Unit makes a Subaward to a Subrecipient shall require such Subrecipient to disclose to the COI Point of Contact any potential real or apparent conflicts of interest that the Subrecipient identifies. Upon receipt of such disclosure, the COI Point of Contact shall disclose such information to the Federal awarding agency that funded the Subaward in accordance with that agency's disclosure policy.

VI. Gift Standards

- a. <u>Federal Standard</u>. Subject to the exceptions set forth in <u>Section VI(b)</u>, a Covered Individual may not solicit or accept gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from a Contractor or a Subcontractor.
- b. Exception. Notwithstanding Section VI(a), a Covered Individual may accept an unsolicited gift from a Contractor or Subcontractor of one or more types specified below if the gift has an aggregate market value of \$20 or less per source per occasion, provided that the aggregate market value of all gifts received by the Covered Individual pursuant to this Section VI(b) does not exceed \$50 in a calendar year:
 - i. honorariums for participating in meetings;
 - ii. advertising items or souvenirs of nominal value; or
 - iii. meals furnished at banquets.
- c. <u>Internal Reporting</u>. A Covered Individual shall report any gift accepted under <u>Section VI(b)</u> to the COI Point of Contact. If required by regulation of a Federal awarding agency, the COI Point of Contact shall report such gifts to the Federal awarding agency or a Pass-Through Entity for which the Unit is a Subrecipient.

VII. Violations of Policy

- a. <u>Disciplinary Actions for Covered Individuals</u>. Any Covered Individual that fails to disclose a real, apparent, or potential real or apparent conflict of interest arising with respect to the Covered Individual or Related Party may be subject to disciplinary action, including, but not limited to, an employee's termination or suspension of employment with or without pay, the consideration or adoption of a resolution of censure of a Public Official by the Governing Board, or termination of an agent's contract with the Unit.
- b. <u>Disciplinary Actions for Contractors and Subcontractors</u>. The Unit shall terminate any Contract with a Contractor or Subcontractor that violates any provision of this Policy.

c. Protections for Whistleblowers. In accordance with 41 U.S.C. § 4712, the Unit shall not discharge, demote, or otherwise discriminate against an employee in reprisal for disclosing to any of the list of persons or entities provided below, information that the employee reasonably believes is evidence of gross mismanagement of a federal contract or grant, a gross waste of federal funds, an abuse of authority relating to a federal contract or grant, a substantial and specific danger to public health or safety, or a violation of law, rule, or regulation related to a federal contract (including the competition for or negotiation of a contract) or grant: (i) a member of Congress or a representative of a committee of Congress; (ii) an Inspector General; (iii) the Government Accountability Office; (iv) a Treasury or other federal agency employee responsible for grant oversight or management; (v) an authorized official of the Department of Justice or other law enforcement agency; (vi) a court or grand jury; of (vii) a management official or other employee of the Unit, a Contractor, or Subcontractor who has the responsibility to investigate, discover, or address misconduct.

Adopted this 14th day of April, 2022

John R. Kirkland, Mayor

ATTEST:

Kristie J. Nobles, Town Clerk

INCORPORATED SEAL 1981

EXHIBIT A

Examples

Potential Examples of a "Financial or Other Interest" in a Firm or Organization Considered for a Contract or Subaward	Potential Examples of a "Tangible Personal Benefit" From a Firm or Organization Considered for a Contract or Subaward
Direct or indirect equity interest in a firm or organization considered for a Contract or Subaward, which may include: - Stock in a corporation. - Membership interest in a limited liability company. - Partnership interest in a general or limited partnership. - Any right to control the firm or organization's affairs. For example, a controlling equity interest in an entity that controls or has the right to control a firm considered for a contract. - Option to purchase any equity interest in a	Opportunity to be employed by the firm considered for a contract, an affiliate of that firm, or any other firm with a relationship with the firm considered for a Contract. A position as a director or officer of the firm or organization, even if uncompensated.
firm or organization. Holder of any debt owed by a firm considered for a Contract or Subaward, which may include: - Secured debt (e.g., debt backed by an asset of the firm (like a firm's building or equipment)) - Unsecured debt (e.g., a promissory note evidencing a promise to repay a loan). O Holder of a judgment against the firm. Supplier or contractor to a firm or organization considered for a Contract or Subaward.	A referral of business from a firm considered for a Contract or Subaward. Political or social influence (e.g., a promise of appointment to an local office or position on a public board or private board).

EXHIBIT B

COMPLIANCE CHECKLIST FOR OVERSIGHT OF CONTRACT CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Financial Assistance (as defined in Section II of the Policy). The Policy designates the Town Manager as the "COI Point of Contact." The Policy The Town of River Bend ("Unit") has adopted a Conflict of Interest Policy ("Policy") that governs the Unit's expenditure of Federal requires the COI Point of Contact to complete this Compliance Checklist to identify potential real or apparent conflicts of interest in connection with proposed Contracts (as defined in <u>Section II</u>) and file the Checklist in the records of the Unit.

Instructions for Completion

- 1. The COI Point of Contact shall complete Steps 1 through 5 of the Checklist below.
- If the value of the proposed Contract exceeds \$[250,000], the COI Point of Contact shall collect a Conflict of Interest Disclosure Form from each Covered Individual رز ا
- If the COI Point of Contact identifies a potential real or apparent conflict of interest after completing this Compliance Checklist, the COI Point of Contact shall report such potential conflict of interest to the Finance Officer and to each member of the Governing Board. 3

Definitions.

- 1. Covered Individual. Each person identified in Section 1 of this Checklist is a "Covered Individual" for purposes of this Compliance Checklist and the Policy.
- Immediate Family Member means, with respect to any Covered Individual, (i) a spouse, and parents thereof, (ii) a child, and parent thereof, (iii) a parent, and spouse thereof, (iv) a sibling, and spouse thereof, (v) a grandparent and grandchild, and spouses thereof, (vi) domestic partners and parents thereof, including domestic partners of any individual in (ii) through (v) of this definition; and (vii) any individual related by blood or affinity whose close association with the Covered Individual is the equivalent of a family relationship. 7
- Related Party means (i) an Immediate Family Member of a Covered Individual, (ii) a partner of a Covered Individual, or (iii) a current or potential employer (other than the Unit) of a Covered Individual, of a partner of a Covered Individual, or of an Immediate Family Member of a Covered Individual 33

dana		Č	
1 F	Identify the proposed Contract, counterparty, and the subject of the Contract.	Name of Contract:	
		Name of Counterparty	
		Subject of Contract:	
2 Id	Identify all individuals involved in Individuals". Ensure that each Cov	Identify all individuals involved in the selection, award, or administration of the Contract. These individuals are "Covered Individuals". Ensure that each Covered Individual has been provided with a copy of the Conflict of Interest Policy.	Contract. These individuals are "Covered of the Conflict of Interest Policy.
	Public Officials	Employees	Agents
m m	Identify whether any Covered Individual has a (i) financial or other considered for a Contract. [If the estimated Contract amount exceed Conflict of Interest Disclosure Form with the COI Point of Contact.]	ered Individual has a (i) financial or other interest in, or (ii) tangible personal benefit from the firm . [If the estimated Contract amount exceeds \$[250,000], ensure that each Covered Individual files a sure Form with the COI Point of Contact.]	r (ii) tangible personal benefit from the firm , ensure that each Covered Individual files a
Any identified interest in Step 3 is a potential "real" conflict of interest.	Public Officials	Employees	Agents
4 7	dentify whether any Related Party onsidered from a Contract. If the Conflict of Interest Disclosure Fo	Identify whether any Related Party has a (i) financial or other interest in or (ii) tangible personal benefit from the firm considered from a Contract. If the estimated Contract amount exceeds \$[250,000], ensure that each Covered Individual files a Conflict of Interest Disclosure Form with the COI Point of Contact.	ngible personal benefit from the firm], ensure that each Covered Individual files
Any identified Interest in Step 4 is a potential "real" conflict of interest.	Public Officials – Related Party	Employees – Related Party	Agents – Related Party

Any identified interest in Step 5 is a potential "apparent" conflict Any identified interest in Step 5 is a potential "apparent" conflict Of interest. COI Point of Contact: Signature of COI Point of Contact: Date of Completion:	ч	Idometica with others of months of	المراكبة الم	
ublic Officials Employees	9	relationship creates the appearance tangible personal benefit from a fin	on with knowledge of the relevant facts would that a Covered Individual or any Related Pal m considered for a Contract? If yes, explain.	d rind that an existing situation or rty has a financial or other interest in or a
	Any identified	Public Officials	Employees	
OI Point of Contact: gnature of COI Point of Contact: ate of Completion:	interest in Step 5 is a potential "apparent" conflict of interest			
gnature of COI Point of Contact: ate of Completion:	COI Point of Contact:			
ate of Completion:	gnature of COI Point	of Contact:		
	ate of Completion:			

EXHIBIT C

CONTRACT CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE FORM

FOR OFFICIALS, EMPLOYEES, AND AGENTS

The Town of River Bend ("*Unit*") has adopted a Conflict of Interest Policy ("*Policy*") that governs the Unit's expenditure of Federal Financial Assistance (as defined in <u>Section II</u> of the Policy). The Policy designates the Town Manager as the "COI Point of Contact."

con	involved ancial Assi	in stance, terest i	the the CC n the F	selection, OI Point of Cirm consider	award, (the "C Contact ha ered for the	ontract"). To safe s requested that you e award of a Cont	tion of guard the U	the followin nit's expenditu ny potential re	ng contract: ure of Federal al or apparent
1.	Do you ha	ive a fi	nancial	or other in	terest in a	firm considered for	or this Conti	ract?	
	Yes_		No		Unsure:				
	If the	answer	is Yes	or Unsure,	please ex	plain:			
2.	Yes _		No	ngible perso ———— or Unsure,	Unsure:		sidered for t	his Contract?	
3.	and their pany spous domestic p	parents e of you partner or affin	, (ii) yo our sible of any ity who	our child, (i ing, (v) you individual ose close as	ii) your pa ir grandpa in (ii) thro sociation	r "Immediate Fan arent and any spou arents or grandchi ough (v) of this de with you is the eq ate Family Memb Contract?	use of your partion of the second sec	parent, (iv) you be spouses of (vii) any indi family relation	ur sibling and each, (vi) any vidual related onship.
						Unsure: _ Unsure, please exp			

	b.			e Family Member that will receive a tangible personal ered for this Contract?
		Yes	No	Unsure:
4.	Do you have a Contract?	any other pa	artner with a fin	nancial or other interest in a firm considered for thi
		Yes	No	Unsure:
		If the answ	er is Yes or Uns	sure, please explain:
5.	Will any other this Contract?	partner of y	ours receive an	y tangible personal benefit from a firm considered fo
		Yes	No	Unsure:
		If the answ	er is Yes or Uns	sure, please explain:
0.	-	d for this C t from this C Yes	ontract or will a	ther than the Unit) have a financial or other interest in a such current or potential employer receive a tangible
		If the answ	er is Yes or Uns	sure, please explain:
7.	Benefits to Emp	ployers		
				or (other than the Unit) of any of your Immediate Family interest in a firm considered for this Contract?
		Yes	No	Unsure:
		If the answ	er is Yes or Uns	sure, please explain:
		_		r (other than the Unit) of any of your Immediate Family al benefit from this Contract?
		Yes	No	Unsure:
		If the answ	er is Yes or Uns	eure, please explain:

	c.		-			other than the Unit) of any partner of yours has idered for this Contract?	ive a
			Yes	_ No _		Unsure:	
			If the answ	er is Yes o	r Unsure,	please explain:	
	d.		current or pole personal be			her than the Unit) of any partner of yours rece tract?	ive a
			Yes	_ No _	19.74 S 19.14 S	Unsure:	
			If the answ	er is Yes o	r Unsure,	please explain:	
8.	interes	t in a fir	_	l for this Co	_	e the <u>appearance</u> that you have a financial or o will receive a tangible personal benefit from a	
		Yes _	No		Unsure	e:	
		If the a	nswer is Ye	s or Unsur	•	explain:	
9.	Membe	er of yo	urs has a fin	ancial or	onship cr	reate the <u>appearance</u> that any Immediate Fa rest in a firm considered for this Contract or considered for this Contract?	-
		Yes	No		Unsure	e:	
		If the a	ınswer is Ye	s or Unsur	e, please e	explain:	
10.	employ	er (othe	er than the Ur	nit) has a fi	nancial or	eate the <u>appearance</u> that your current or poter other interest in a firm considered for this Con a firm considered for this Contract?	
		Yes	No		Unsure	e:	
		If the a	answer is Yes	s or Unsure	e, please e	explain:	

11. Does any existing situation or relationship create the <u>appearance</u> that any current or potential employer (other than the Unit) of any of your Immediate Family Members has a financial or other

	in a firm co cred for this		is Contract or will receive a tangib	le personal benefit from a firm
	Yes	No	Unsure:	
	If the answ	er is Yes or U	nsure, please explain:	
employ	er (other the ered for this	an the Unit)	elationship create the <u>appearance</u> of any other partner has a financial receive a tangible personal benefit.	ial or other interest in a firm
	Yes	No	Unsure:	
	If the answe	er is Yes or U	nsure, please explain:	
			* * * * * * *	
Sign Name:				
Print Name:				
Name of Emplo	yer			
Job Title:				
Date of Comple	etion:			

EXHIBIT D

COMPLIANCE CHECKLIST FOR SUBAWARD OVERSIGHT

Financial Assistance (as defined in Section II of the Policy). The Policy designates the Town Manager as the "COI Point of Contact." The Policy requires the COI Point of Contact to complete this Compliance Checklist to identify potential real or apparent conflicts of interest in connection with The Town of River Bend ("Unit") has adopted a Conflict of Interest Policy ("Policy") that governs the Unit's expenditure of Federal proposed Subawards (as defined in Section II) and file the Checklist in the records of the Unit.

Instructions for Completion

- 1. The COI Point of Contact shall complete Steps 1 through 5 of the Checklist below.
- If the value of the proposed Subaward exceeds \$[250,000], the COI Point of Contact shall collect a Conflict of Interest Disclosure Form from each Covered Individual ۲i
- If the COI Point of Contact identifies a potential real or apparent conflict of interest after completing this Compliance Checklist, the COI Point of Contact shall report such potential conflict of interest to the Finance Officer and to each member of the Governing Board. ж.

Definitions

- 1. Covered Individual. Each person identified in Section 1 of this Checklist is a "Covered Individual" for purposes of this Compliance Checklist and the Policy.
- Immediate Family Member means, with respect to any Covered Individual, (i) a spouse, and parents thereof, (ii) a child, and parent thereof, (iii) a parent, and spouse thereof, (iv) a sibling, and spouse thereof, (v) a grandparent and grandchild, and spouses thereof, (vi) domestic partners and parents thereof, including domestic partners of any individual in (ii) through (v) of this definition; and (vii) any individual related by blood or affinity whose close association with the Covered Individual is the equivalent of a family relationship. 7
- Related Party means (i) an Immediate Family Member of a Covered Individual, (ii) a partner of a Covered Individual, or (iii) a current or potential employer (other than the Unit) of a Covered Individual, of a partner of a Covered Individual, or of an Immediate Family Member of a Covered Individual ω.

Step			
. 1	Identify the proposed Subaward, Subrecipient, and the subject of the Subaward.	Name of Contract:	
		Name of Counterparty	
		Subject of Subaward:	
7	Identify all individuals involved in Individuals". Ensure that each Co	Identify all individuals involved in the selection, award, or administration of the Subaward. These individuals are "Covered Individuals". Ensure that each Covered Individual has been provided with a copy of the Conflict of Interest Policy.	Subaward. These individuals are "Covered v of the Conflict of Interest Policy.
		Employees	Agents
<i>.</i>	Identify whether any Covered Indiconsidered for a Subaward. [If the a Conflict of Interest Disclosure F	Identify whether any Covered Individual has a (i) financial or other interest in, or (ii) tangible personal benefit from the firm considered for a Subaward. [If the estimated Subaward amount exceeds \$[100,000], ensure that each Covered Individual files a Conflict of Interest Disclosure Form with the COI Point of Contact.]	or (ii) tangible personal benefit from the firm 00], ensure that each Covered Individual files
Any identified interest in Step 3 is a potential "real" conflict of interest.	Public Officials	Employees	Agents
4	Identify whether any Related Party considered from a Subaward. If th files a Conflict of Interest Disclosu	Identify whether any Related Party has a (i) financial or other interest in or (ii) tangible personal benefit from the firm considered from a Subaward. If the estimated Subaward amount exceeds \$[100,000], ensure that each Covered Individual files a Conflict of Interest Disclosure Form with the COI Point of Contact.]	ngible personal benefit from the firm 000], ensure that each Covered Individual
Any identified interest in Step 4 is a potential "real" conflict of interest.	Public Officials – Related Party	Employees – Related Party	Agents – Related Party

find that an existing situation or y has a financial or other interest in or a	Agents
Identify whether a reasonable person with knowledge of the relevant facts would find that an existing situation or relationship creates the <i>appearance</i> that a Covered Individual or any Related Party has a financial or other interest in or a tangible personal benefit from a firm considered for a Subaward? If yes, explain.	Employees
Identify whether a reasonable person relationship creates the <i>appearance</i> th tangible personal benefit from a firm	Public Officials
w	Any identified interest in Step 5 is a potential "apparent" conflict of interest.

COI Point of Contact:
Signature of COI Point of Contact:
Date of Completion:

EXHIBIT E

SUBAWARD CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE FORM FOR OFFICIALS, EMPLOYEES, AND AGENTS

The Town of River Bend ("*Unit*") has adopted a Conflict of Interest Policy ("*Policy*") that governs the Unit's expenditure of Federal Financial Assistance (as defined in <u>Section II</u> of the Policy). The Policy designates the Town Manager as the COI Point of Contact.

be				•	as an official, employee, or agent of the Unit that may administration of the following subaward:
app	arent confli	cts of int	erest in the Fi	Point of Conta	award"). To safeguard the Unit's expenditure of ct has requested that you identify any potential real or for the award of a Subaward. Using the Exhibit A to estions:
1.	Do you hav	ve a finan	cial or other i	nterest in a firm	a considered for this Subaward?
	Yes		No	Unsure:	
	If the a	nswer is	Yes or Unsur	e, please explai	1 :
2.	Will you re	ceive any	tangible per	sonal benefit fro	om a firm considered for this Subaward?
	Yes		No	Unsure:	
	If the a	nswer is	Yes or Unsur	e, please explaii	1:
3.	and their pa any spouse domestic pa	arents, (ii of your artner of affinity a.) your child, (sibling, (v) yo any individua whose close a Do you have	(iii) your parent our grandparent I in (ii) through association with	nmediate Family Members" include: (i) your spouse and any spouse of your parent, (iv) your sibling and s or grandchildren, and the spouses of each, (vi) any (v) of this definition; and (vii) any individual related you is the equivalent of a family relationship. Family Member with a financial or other interest in a tward?
			Yes	No	Unsure:
			If the answer	is Yes or Unsur	re, please explain:

	b.	•		e Family Member that will receive a tangible personal ered for this Subaward?
		Yes	No	Unsure:
4.	Do you have a Subaward?	any other par	tner with a fir	nancial or other interest in a firm considered for this
		Yes	No	Unsure:
		If the answe	r is Yes or Uns	sure, please explain:
5.	Will any other this Subaward?	-	ours receive an	y tangible personal benefit from a firm considered for
		Yes	No	Unsure:
				sure, please explain:
6.	~	d for this Sub it from this Su	paward or will abaward?	ther than the Unit) have a financial or other interest in a such current or potential employer receive a tangible
		If the answe	r is Yes or Uns	sure, please explain:
7.	Benefits to Em	ployers		
		_		er (other than the Unit) of any of your Immediate Family interest in a firm considered for this Subaward?
		Yes	No	Unsure:
				sure, please explain:
		current or pot	ential employe	r (other than the Unit) of any of your Immediate Family al benefit from this Subaward?
		Yes	No	Unsure:
		If the answe	r is Yes or Uns	sure, please explain:

	c.		current or pot al or other inte	_					r of yours ha	ve a
			Yes	No		Unsure:				
			If the answer	is Yes or	Unsure, p	lease expla	in:			
	d.		current or pote	_	• .		Unit) of an	y partner o	of yours recei	ve a
			Yes	No		Unsure:				
			If the answer	is Yes or	Unsure, p	lease expla	in:			
j	interest	in a firi	ng situation or n considered for this Suba	for this Su	_		_			
		Yes	No _		Unsure:					
		If the ar	nswer is Yes o	or Unsure,	please ex	plain:				
1	Membe	er of you	ing situation rs has a finan le personal be	cial or oth	er interes	st in a firm	considere	d for this		
		Yes	No _		Unsure:					
		If the ar	nswer is Yes o	or Unsure,	please ex	plain:				
•	employ	er (othe	ing situation or than the Ur Il receive a tan	nit) has a	financial	or other i	nterest in	a firm co	nsidered for	this
		Yes	No _		Unsure:					
		If the ar	nswer is Yes o	or Unsure,	please exp	plain:				

11. Does any existing situation or relationship create the <u>appearance</u> that any current or potential employer (other than the Unit) of any of your Immediate Family Members has a financial or other

		nsidered for thi his Subaward?	s Subaward or will receive a tangible pers	onal benefit from a		
	Yes	No	Unsure:			
	If the answer is Yes or Unsure, please explain:					
employ conside	er (other tha	n the Unit) of	tionship create the <u>appearance</u> that any any other partner has a financial or othe receive a tangible personal benefit from a	r interest in a firm		
	Yes	No	Unsure:			
	If the answer	r is Yes or Uns	nre, please explain:			
			* * * * * * * *			
Sign Name:						
Print Name:						
Name of Emplo	oyer					
Job Title:						
Date of Comple	etion:					
				·		

E-11



TOWN OF RIVER BEND BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 21-B-06 FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the Town of River Bend, North Carolina that the 2021-2022 Budget Ordinance as last amended on March 10, 2022, be amended as follows:

S	u	m	۱r	n	a	n

General Fund	3,028,232
General Capital Reserve Fund	107,187
Law Enforcement Separation Allowance Fund	13,545
Water Fund	673,545
Water Capital Reserve Fund	489
Sewer Fund	733,583
Sewer Capital Reserve Fund	22
Total	4,556,603

Section 1. General Fund

Anticipated Revenues

AD VALOREM Taxes 2021-2022	711,163
AD VALOREM Tax-Motor Vehicle	85,800
Animal Licenses	2,000
Sales Tax 1% Article 39	149,718
Sales Tax 1/2% Article 40	87,158
Sales Tax 1/2% Article 42	74,932
Sales Tax Article 44 105-524	10,235
Sales Tax Hold Harmless Distribution	86,068
Solid Waste Disposal Tax	2,200
Powell Bill Allocation	92,539
Beer and Wine Tax	13,225
Video Programming Sales Tax	53,600
Utilities Franchise Tax	111,000
Telecommunications Sales Tax	9,900
Court Refunds	500
Zoning Permits	5,000
Federal Grant	22,170
Recovery Grant NCORR-FDLG-004	76,445
Federal Disaster Assistance	35,434
Miscellaneous	10,000
Interest-NCORR-FDLG-004 Investments	30
Interest- Powell Bill Investments	50
Interest-Gen Investments	500
Contributions	421
Wildwood Storage Rents	18,144
Rents & Concessions	18,000
Sale of Captial Assets	31,008
Transfer From Capital Reserve Fund	65,342
Transfer From ARPA Grants Project	964,378
Appropriated Fund Balance	291,272
Total	3,028,232

Section 1.	General Fund (continued)	
Authorized Expend	ditures	
	Governing Body	32,000
	Administration	271,575
	Finance	192,018
	Tax Listing	11,200
	Legal Services	24,000
	Elections	3,500
	Police	640,114
	Public Buildings	124,439
	Emergency Services	4,000
	Animal Control	11,056
	Street Maintenance	186,141
	Public Works	161,197
	Leaf & Limb and Solid Waste	44,000
	Stormwater Management	37,084
	Wetlands and Waterways	3,000
	Planning & Zoning	50,563
	Recovery Grant NCORR-FDLG-004	77,602
	Recreation & Special Events	7,500
	Parks & Community Appearance	44,699
	Contingency	17,666
	Transfer To General Capital Reserve Fund	107,000
	Transfer To L.E.S.A. Fund	13,500
	Transfer to Public Works Capital Projects Fund	964,378
	Total	3,028,232
		5,5=5,=5=
Section 2.	General Capital Reserve Fund	
Anticipated Reven	ues	
	Contributions from General Fund	107,000
	Interest Revenue	187
	Total	107,187
Authorized Expend	litures	
	Transfer to General Fund	65,342
	Future Procurement	41,845
		107,187
Section 3.	Law Enforcement Separation Allowance Fund	
Anticipated Reven	ues:	
	ibutions from General Fund	13,500
	est Revenue	45
	Total	13,545
		10,043
Authorized Expend		
	ation Allowance	1,517
Futur	e LEOSSA Payments	12,028
	Total	13,545

Section 4.	Water Fund	
Anticipated Rever	nues	
	Utility Usage Charges, Classes 1 & 2	199,710
	Utility Usage Charges, Classes 3 & 4	8,949
	Utility Usage Charges, Class 5	12,209
	Utility Usage Charges, Class 8	3,586
	Utility Customer Base Charges	231,472
	Hydrant Availability Fee	20,496
	Taps & Connections Fees	1,250
	Nonpayment Fees	10,500
	Late payment Fees	6,839
	Interest Revenue	1,275
	Sale of Capital Asset	0
	Appropriated Fund Balance	177,259
	Total	673,545
Authorized Expen	Administration & Finance [1] Operations and Maintenance Transfer To Fund Balance for Capital Outlay Transfer To Water Capital Reserve Fund Total [1] Portion of department for bond debt service:	520,645 149,400 3,500 0 673,545
Section 5.	Water Capital Reserve Fund	
Anticipated Rever	nues	
	Contributions From Water Operations Fund	0
	Interest Revenue	489
	Total	489
Authorized Expen	ditures	
Future Expansion & Debt Service		
		489

Section 6.	Sewer Fund	
Anticipated Reve	enues:	
	Utility Usage Charges, Classes 1 & 2	258,181
	Utility Usage Charges, Classes 3 & 4	20,212
	Utility Usage Charges, Class 5	27,576
	Utility Usage Charges, Class 8	7,264
	Utility Customer Base Charges	294,652
	Taps & Connection Fees	1,250
	Late payment Fees	7,902
	Interest Revenue	1,919
	Sale of Capital Asset	0
	Appropriated Fund Balance	114,627
	Total	733,583
Authorized Expe	nditures:	
	Administration & Finance [2]	514,483
	Operations and Maintenance	215,600
	Transfer to Fund Balance for Capital Outlay	3,500
	Transfer to Sewer Capital Reserve Fund	0
	Total	733,583
	[2] Portion of department for bond debt service:	128,659
Section 7.	Sewer Capital Reserve	
Anticipated Reve	enues:	
•	Contributions From Sewer Operations Fund	0
	Interest Revenue	22
	Total	22
Authorized Expe	nditures:	
	Future Expansion & Debt Service	22

Section 8. Levy of Taxes

There is hereby levied a tax at the rate of twenty-six cents (\$0.26) per one hundred dollars (\$100) valuation of property as listed for taxes as of January 1, 2021, for the purpose of raising the revenue listed as "Ad Valorem Taxes 2021-2022" in the General Fund Section 1 of this ordinance. This rate is based on a valuation of \$278,000,000 for purposes of taxation of real and personal property with an estimated rate of collection of 98.39%. The estimated collection rate is based on the fiscal year 2019-2020 collection rate of 98.39% by Craven County who has been contracted to collect real and personal property taxes for the Town of River Bend. Also included is a valuation of \$33,000,000 for purposes of taxation of motor vehicles with a collection rate of 100% by the North Carolina Vehicle Tax System.

Section 9. Fees and Charges

There is hereby established, for Fiscal Year 2022, various fees and charges as contained in Attachment A of this document.

Section 10. Special Authorization of the Budget Officer

- A. The Budget Officer shall be authorized to reallocate any appropriations within departments.
- **B.** The Budget Officer shall be authorized to execute interfund and interdepartmental transfers in emergency situations. Notification of all such transfers shall be made to the Town Council at its next meeting following the transfer.
- **C.** The Budget Officer shall be authorized to execute interdepartmental transfers in the same fund, including contingency appropriations, not to exceed \$5,000. Notification of all such transfers shall be made to the Town Council at its next meeting following the transfer.

Section 11. Classification and Pay Plan

Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) for all Town employees shall be 1.4% and shall begin the first payroll in the new fiscal year. The Town Manager is hereby authorized to grant merit increases to Town employees, when earned, per the approved Pay Plan.

Section 12. Utilization of the Budget Ordinance

This ordinance shall be the basis of the financial plan for the Town of River Bend municipal government during the 2021-2022 fiscal year. The Budget Officer shall administer the Annual Operating Budget and shall ensure the operating staff and officials are provided with guidance and sufficient details to implement their appropriate portion of the budget.

Section 13. Copies of this Budget Ordinance

Copies of this Budget Ordinance shall be furnished to the Clerk, Town Council, Budget Officer and Finance Officer to be kept on file by them for their direction in the disbursement of funds.

Adopted this 14th day of April, 2022.

John R. Kirkland, Mayor

Attest:

Kristie J. Nobles, Town Clerk

INCORPORATED SEAL 1981

1981

TOWN OF RIVER BEND

Grant Project Ordinance for Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, Amendment #1

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the Town of River Bend, North Carolina that the Grant Project Ordinance for Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 be amended as follows:

Section 1. This ordinance is to establish a budget for a project to be funded by the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds of H.R. 1319 American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARP/CSLFRF). The Town received the first tranche in the amount of \$482,189 of CSLFRF funds. The total allocation is \$964,378, with the remainder to be distributed to the Town within 12 months. These funds may be used for the following categories of expenditures, to the extent authorized by state law.

- 1. Support public health expenditures, by funding COVID-19 mitigation efforts, medical expenses, behavioral healthcare, and certain public health and safety staff;
- 2. Address negative economic impacts caused by the public health emergency, including economic harms to workers, households, small businesses, impacted industries, and the public sector;
- 3. Replace lost public sector revenue, using this funding to provide government services to the extent of the reduction in revenue experienced due to the pandemic;
- 4. Provide premium pay for essential workers, offering additional support to those who have borne and will bear the greatest health risks because of their service in critical infrastructure sectors; and,
- 5. Invest in water, sewer, and broadband infrastructure, making necessary investments to improve access to clean drinking water, support vital wastewater and stormwater infrastructure, and to expand access to broadband internet.

Section 2. The Town has elected to take the standard allowance, as authorized by 31 CFR Part 35.6(d)(1) and expend all its ARP/CSLFRF funds for the provision of government services.

Section 3. The following amounts are appropriated for the project and authorized for expenditure:

Internal Project Code	Project Description	Expenditure Category (EC)	Cost Object	Appropriation of ARP/CSLFRF Funds
001	Law enforcement services for period of March 7, 2021 through April 2, 2022	6.1	Salaries Benefits	\$340,063 \$124,829
002	General administration services for period of March 7, 2021 through June 30, 2022	6.1	Salaries Benefits	\$235,985 \$80,534
003	Finance services for period of March 7, 2021 through April 2, 2022	6.1	Salaries Benefits	\$80,977 \$27,893
004	Planning and zoning services for period of March 7, 2021 through April 2, 2022	6.1	Salaries Benefits	\$54,214 <u>\$19,883</u>
TOTAL			\$964,378	

Section 4. The following revenues are anticipated to be available to complete the project:

ARP/CSLFRF Funds \$964,378

Section 5. The Finance Officer is hereby directed to maintain sufficient specific detailed accounting records to satisfy the requirements of the grantor agency and the grant agreements; including payroll documentation and effor certifications, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.430 & 2 CFR 200.431 and the Town's Uniform Guidance Allowable Costs and Cost Principles Policy.

Section 6. The Finance Officer is hereby directed to report the financial status of the project to the governing board on a quarterly basis.

<u>Section 7.</u> Copies of this grant project ordinance shall be furnished to the Clerk, Town Council, Budget Officer and Finance Officer to be kept on file by them for their direction in the disbursement of funds.

1981

Section 8. This grant project ordinance is effective as of March 3, 2021 and expires on December 31, 2026, or when all the ARP/CSLFRF funds have been obligated and expended by the Town, whichever occurs sooner.

Adopted this 14th day of April, 2022.

John R. Kirkland, Mayor

Attest:

Kristie J. Nobles. Town Cerk



TOWN OF RIVER BEND PUBLIC WORKS CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND ORDINANCE

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the Town of River Bend, North Carolina:

Section 1. The following amounts are hereby appropriated for the operation of a Town Capital Projects Fund for the construction of a Public Works Building:

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Revenues:	
Operating Transfer from General Fund	964,378
Expenditures:	
Architectural Services	71,500
Land Acquisition	60,000
Legal Services	2,000
Miscellaneous	5,000
Construction	825,878
	964.378

- <u>Section 2.</u> It is estimated that revenues in the amounts indicated in the foregoing schedule will be available to support the foregoing appropriations.
- <u>Section 3.</u> The Finance Officer is hereby authorized to maintain an appropriate Fund Chart of Accounts.
- <u>Section 4.</u> Copies of this Ordinance shall be furnished to the Clerk, Town Council, Budget Officer and Finance Officer to be kept on file by them for their direction in the disbursement of funds.
- <u>Section 5.</u> The capital projects funds are appropriated pursuant to section 13.2 of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina; therefore, appropriations do not lapse at the end of the fiscal year and are available for the duration of the project, estimated to be eighteen months, unless subsequently amended by Council action.

Adopted this 14th day of April, 2022.

John R. Kirkland, Mayor

Attest:

No. 1981



TOWN OF RIVER BEND

45 Shoreline Drive River Bend, NC 28562

T 252.638.3870 F 252.638.2580 www.riverbendnc.org

LEAF & LIMB

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT, made and entered into this <u>20</u> day of <u>April</u>, 2022 by and between the TOWN OF RIVER BEND, a body politic and corporate of the State of North Carolina ("Town"); and K.A. JONES DESIGN AND MANAGEMENT ("Contractor").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Town desires to employ Contractor for those matters contained in this Agreement and Contactor desires to render said services to Town.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the parties as follows:

ARTICLE 1

Responsibilities of Contractor

- 1.1 During the term of this Agreement, and subject to the conditions and terms contained herein, Contractor agrees to provide those services, and other obligations as more fully set forth in Attachments "A", "B", "C", and "D".
- 1.2 Contractor shall provide its services hereunder in a timely manner, using that degree of care and professionalism as exercised by similar entities providing such services.
- 1.3 Contractor shall, at its own expense, maintain and carry workers' compensation, (if statutorily required), commercial general liability, and automobile liability insurance as identified in Attachment "B". Contractor shall provide the Town with Certificates of Insurance before services commence.
- 1.4 Contractor expressly acknowledges that this Agreement is non-exclusive, and that Town may retain the same services from other providers if it deems the same necessary.

ARTICLE 2

Responsibilities of Town

- 2.1 Town agrees to perform all of its obligations, including compensating Contractor, as more particularly set forth in Section 2.4 and Attachments "A" and "B". To the extent there is any conflict between the provisions of Section 2.5 and any Attachment, Section 2.5 shall control.
- **2.2** Town shall provide reasonable assistance to Contractor in the performance of Contractor's duties contained herein.
- 2.3 Invoices submitted to Town by Contractor shall be due and payable no more than thirty (30) days after completion of the services described by this Agreement, subject to the Town's satisfaction, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.
- **2.4** In no event shall Town be required to reimburse Contractor if the project contemplated hereunder is not awarded and fully funded by the appropriate governmental agency. Furthermore, in no event shall the compensation identified in Section 2.1 exceed the agreed upon rates as specified in Attachments "A" and "B".
- 2.5 The contract amount of § 125.00 per ton as stated in Attachment "B" herein for "Routine Leaf and Limb Pickup" above shall automatically change effective July 1 of each subsequent year beginning on July 1, 2023 at a rate equal to the Consumer Price Index (CPI) but not to exceed a maximum of 5% change, for all items for the South Region for the previous 12 months ending in March, 2023 and then each subsequent March, as published by the US Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics.
- 2.6 For Routine Leaf and Limb Pickup, Contractor shall invoice the Town after completion of each zone of town, currently Zone 1 and Zone 2. Contractor shall keep load tickets for invoices separated by zone. For Emergency Debris Removal, when provided, the Contractor shall invoice the Town on a monthly basis. Contractor is responsible for maintaining all supporting documentation such as load tickets, etc. which may be necessary to verify billing amounts for any service described herein.

ARTICLE 3

Term

The term of this Agreement is for a period starting **July 1, 2022** and ending **June 30, 2026**. This Agreement may be terminated by either party at any time for cause upon 30 days advance written notice. If the Town is the party terminating this Agreement for cause, Contractor shall be entitled to no further compensation. Otherwise, either party may terminate this Agreement without cause upon 60 days advance written notice. In the event of termination without cause, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for all services provided through the date of termination of the contract. Town may terminate performance of work under this Agreement in whole or in part for convenience if the Town determines that a termination is in the Town's interest.

ARTICLE 4

Independent Contractor

In the performance of services hereunder, the Contractor and its agents shall at all times act as an independent contractor practicing their profession and not as employees of the Town. Contractor and its agents shall not have any claim under this Agreement or otherwise against Town for vacation pay, sick leave, retirement benefits, social security, worker's compensation, disability benefits, unemployment insurance benefits, or employee benefits of any other kind.

ARTICLE 5

Indemnification; Limitation of Liability

5.1 To the extent allowed by law, each party shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the other party from and against claims, damages, losses and expenses resulting from the negligent acts or omissions of malfeasance of the indemnifying party under this Agreement. The obligation of indemnity hereunder shall not include special, indirect, incidental or consequential damages, including but not limited to, loss of profits or revenue, loss of use of the equipment or any associated equipment, cost of capital, cost of substitute equipment, facilities or services, downtime costs, delays or claims of customers or third parties for any damages, however caused, whether based on warranty, agreement, tort, negligence, strict liability or otherwise and whether or not a party is advised of the possibility of such damages, and if this Agreement is governed by or interpreted in accordance with the laws of a jurisdiction that does not allow the exclusion or limitation of special, indirect, incidental or consequential damages so that the foregoing limitation

or exclusion does not apply, then such limitation or exclusion shall apply to the fullest extent allowable under applicable law.

5.2 Notwithstanding anything herein, in no event shall a party be liable, under any circumstances, for special, indirect, incidental or consequential damages, whether in warranty, agreement, tort, negligence, strict liability or otherwise and whether or not a party is advised of the possibility of such damages, including, but not limited to loss of profits or revenue, loss of use of the equipment or any associated equipment, cost of capital, cost of substitute equipment, facilities or services, downtime costs, delays, and claims of customers or other third parties for any damages, and if this Agreement is governed by or interpreted in accordance with the laws of a jurisdiction that does not allow the exclusion or limitation of special, indirect, incident or consequential damages so that the foregoing limitation or exclusion does not apply, then such limitation or exclusion shall apply to the fullest extent allowable under applicable law. Notwithstanding anything herein, each party's aggregate liability for any and all claims whether in agreement, warranty, tort, negligence, strict liability, or any otherwise for any loss or damages arising out of, connected with, or resulting from this Agreement or the performance or breach thereof, or from the design, manufacture, sale, delivery, resale, repair, replacement, installation, technical direction of installation, inspection, operation or use of any equipment covered by or furnished under this Agreement, or from any services rendered in connection therewith or related to the subject matter hereof, shall in no case exceed the contract price of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 6

Force Majeure

6.1 Contractor shall neither be liable for loss, damages, detention or delay nor be deemed to be in default for failure to perform when prevented from doing so by causes beyond its reasonable control including but not limited to acts of war (declared or undeclared) or terrorism, acts of God, fire, strike, labor difficulties, acts or omissions of any governmental authority, including the Town, compliance with government regulations, insurrection or riot, embargo, delays or shortages in transportation or inability to obtain necessary labor, materials, or manufacturing facilities from usual sources or from defects or delays in the performance of its suppliers or subcontractors due to any of the foregoing enumerated causes. In the event of delay due to any such cause, the date of delivery or installation will be extended by a period equal to the delay plus a reasonable time to resume delivery or installation.

ARTICLE 7

Miscellaneous

7.1 Entire Agreement; Modification: This Agreement (including all exhibits and schedules attached hereto), contain all of the terms and conditions agreed to by the Parties, and no other contract, document or agreement, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or to bind any Party hereto or to vary any of the terms contained in this Agreement. This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements and understandings between the parties hereto relating to the subject matter hereof.

7.2 Severability: If any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or unenforceable, the decision of such court shall not affect or impair any of the remaining provisions of this Agreement, and the Parties shall, to the extent they deem to be appropriate, take such actions as are necessary to correct any such unconstitutional or unenforceable provision. It is hereby declared to be the intent of the Parties to this Agreement that this Agreement would have been approved and executed had such an unconstitutional or unenforceable provision been excluded therefrom.

7.3 Binding Effect: This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective legal representatives, successors, and assigns.

7.4 <u>Assignment:</u> Except as may otherwise be expressly provided herein, no party may assign any right, obligation, or liability arising hereunder without the other party's prior written consent. Any such assignment or attempted assignment shall be null and void.

7.5 <u>Headings:</u> Headings in this Agreement are for convenience and reference only and shall not be used to interpret or construe its provisions.

7.6 <u>Duplicate Originals:</u> This Agreement shall be executed in duplicate originals, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

7.7 Notices and Communications. Notices or communications required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be given to the respective parties by hand or by registered or certified mail or nationally recognized courier service (said notice being deemed given as of the date of receipt) at the following addresses:

For Town:

Delane Jackson, Town Manager

45 Shoreline Dr.

River Ben, NC 28562

Telephone: 252-638-3870

For Contractor:

K.A. Jones Lawn and Landscaping

PO Box 511

Mayesville, NC 28555

Telephone: 910-934-9587

Any party may change the address for such notice by giving written notice of such change of address to the other parties.

7.8 Governing Law and Venue. It is the intention of the parties hereto that this Agreement and the performance hereunder and all suits and special proceedings hereunder be construed in accordance with and under and pursuant to the laws of the State of North Carolina and that in any action, special proceeding or other proceeding that may be brought arising out of, in connection with, or by reason of this Agreement shall be brought in Craven County, North Carolina.

7.9 Non-Waiver. The failure or delay of any party to enforce or pursue any right or remedy existing pursuant to this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of such right or remedy and shall not limit such party's ability to pursue or enforce such right or remedy or any future right or remedy.

E-verify. Contractor will comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the North Carolina General Statutes, to the extent applicable. Contractor shall verify, by affidavit, compliance of the terms of this section upon request by Town.

Iran Divestment. Contractor certifies that it is not listed on the Final Divestment List. The Final Divestment List can be found on the State Treasurer's website at the address www.nctreasurer.com/Iran and should be updated every 180 days.

7.12 Israel Boycott. Contractor certifies that it has not been designated by the North Carolina State Treasurer as engaged in the boycott of Israel pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 147-86.81. It is the responsibility of Contractor to monitor compliance with this certification.

ARTICLE 8

Amendment

8.1 Intentionally left blank for future amendments

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Agreement in duplicate originals, a copy of which is retained by each of the parties, the day and year first above written.

By:
John R. Kirkland
Mayor

ATTEST:

K.A. JONES
DESIGN AND MANAGEMENT

INCORPORATED
SEAL
1981

Kristie J. Nobles
Town Clerk

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act.

By:

Irving J. Wan Slyke, Jr.

Finance/Officer

ATTACHMENTS:

A – Scope of Services to be Provided

B – Insurance Requirements

C – Emergency Equipment Requirements

ATTACHMENT A 1 of 4

Services to be provided and Compensation

EMERGENCY DEBRIS REMOVAL

When notified to do so by the Town Manager or his designee, herein referred to as Town Manager, the Contractor agrees to serve Town immediately after a storm damage event that may require removal of trees and other debris from the Town. Contractor shall provide only those services as specifically directed by the Town Manager. When notification is provided at least 5 days prior to the anticipated arrival of a storm event, Contractor shall preposition equipment in the Town prior to arrival of impacts from the storm. Such equipment will be positioned at a location directed by the Town Manager. The parties expressly acknowledge that this preposition of equipment is necessary so that the equipment may be available in the Town, and will not be isolated at a remote site in the event that vehicular traffic is restricted. Contractor shall provide sufficient equipment and labor, and shall remove a minimum of fifteen (15) tons of debris per day. When provided, it shall be at the rate \$145.00 per ton for the term of this contract. The Town Manager shall determine if the service is needed, and to what extent, and shall certify the tonnage removed. Contractor agrees to begin this process within forty-eight (48) hours of the storm damage event (unless directed otherwise to delay commencement by the Town Manager) and to remain working in the Town continuously, including weekends if directed by Town Manager, until the clean-up is complete as determined by the Town Manager.

Contractor further agrees, at the Town's direction, to provide heavy lift equipment and operators to clear passage through the Town's streets, commonly referred to as "Cut and Toss", prior to commencement of loading and transport operations. Contractor shall be paid for these services based on the then current Time and Material Rates as published by the Federal Emergency Management Agency. Contractor agrees to commence this service within twelve (12) hours of the notification by the Town.

Town shall be responsible for the payment of any "tipping fees" related to disposal of debris removed from the Town, at the Town's direction. The equipment to be used by the Contractor shall be one or more of those vehicles identified on Attachment "D." The Contractor shall verify the tonnage removed by providing weigh tickets from the receiving facility. Each vehicle used for hauling debris under this contract shall be clearly identified and numbered by the Contractor. Such numbering shall remain consistent throughout the term of the project. During the term of this contract, the Contractor shall not use any equipment or personnel designated for this project, for any similar activities within the Town of River Bend unless specifically authorized by the Town Manager. For example, Contractor cannot provide debris clean-up/removal services for hire to the general public while working for the Town without preapproval from Town Manager.

ATTACHMENT B 2 of 4

ROUTINE LEAF AND LIMB PICK-UP

Contractor shall provide loading equipment, personnel and trucks to pick leaf and limbs as defined by Town Ordinance and transport such to a designated disposal site. As a condition of this agreement, contractor shall utilize a leaf vacuum to collect leaves from the roadside/curbside. The pick-up route shall be assigned by the Town Manager or his designee. These pick-ups shall be conducted on a regular schedule, which schedule shall be provided to the Contractor at the beginning of each year that this Agreement is in effect. The contractor is required to make at least one pass and provide pick-up service on every municipal street at least once per scheduled pickup. As a matter of convenience to the contractor, the contractor may, at his discretion, provide more than one pass on a street. However, the contractor is not required, as a condition of this contract, to re-visit streets and provide pick-up of materials that were not placed by the street for collection in accordance with the pick-up schedule, as published by the town. The Town may request the Contractor to provide additional, unscheduled pick-ups in order to provide for removal of additional routine (non- emergency) leaf and limb. Contractor shall provide a daily progress report to the Town Manager, or his designee, while the Contractor is in Town providing the contracted services. Excluding extreme weather delays or written advance approval from the Town Manager or his designee, Contractor shall be penalized fifty percent (50%) of the per term fee if the scheduled start times are not followed. Contractor must provide sufficient equipment and labor, and remove a minimum of five (5) tons of leaf and limb per day. Contractor shall follow the requirements of the Town's ordinances, rules and regulations that may affect the services provided hereunder.

For these services, Contractor shall be compensated at a rate \$\frac{\\$125.00}{2}\$ per ton during the term of this agreement. The Town shall pay the tipping fees for leaf and limb pick up.

Town shall continue to review the best practice for removal of leaf and limb. Should Town modify the present practice of leaf and limb pick up, Contractor shall be notified at least thirty (30) days in advance of a scheduled pick up.



River Bend Town Council Work Session Meeting
April 14, 2022
70 of 95

JRK

ATTACHMENT C
3 of 4

Insurance Requirements

Contractor shall maintain insurance in the kind and amounts set forth below during the term of this Agreement. All such insurance coverage shall name the Town as an additional insured, and shall provide that the coverage shall not be changed or cancelled without thirty (30) days advance written notice to the Town. Prior to performance hereunder, Contractor shall furnish to the Town, certificates of insurance, in a form satisfactory to Town's legal counsel, evidencing such insurance. The kind and amounts of insurance are as follows:

- 1. Worker's compensation insurance in an amount equal to the statutory minimum.
- 2. General liability insurance, including personal injuries, in an amount of not less than \$1,000,000 per person/\$1,000,000 per occurrence.
- 3. Automobile liability insurance coverage for all owned as well as non-owned and hired motor vehicles in limits of not less than a bodily injury liability of \$1,000,000 per person/\$1,000,000 per occurrence, and property damage liability of not less than \$1,000,000.



ATTACHMENT D 4 of 4

Equipment available to be used:

Emergency Operations

- 2 -4 articulating excavators on tracks with manual "thumbs"4- 6 Large capacity dump trucks

Routine Operations

- 1 excavator
- 2 or more dump trucks and/or trailers

Other	
Other	



TOWN OF RIVER BEND

45 Shoreline Drive River Bend, NC 28562

F 252.638.3870 F 252.638.2580 www.riverbendnc.org

MOWING

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Town desires to employ Contractor for those matters contained in this Agreement and Contactor desires to render said services to Town.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the parties as follows:

ARTICLE 1

Responsibilities of Contractor

- 1.1 During the term of this Agreement, and subject to the conditions and terms contained herein, Contractor agrees to provide those services, and other obligations as more fully set forth in Attachment "A".
- 1.2 Contractor shall provide its services hereunder in a timely manner, using that degree of care and professionalism as exercised by similar entities providing such services.
- 1.3 Contractor shall, at its own expense, maintain and carry workers' compensation, (if statutorily required), commercial general liability, and automobile liability insurance. Contractor shall provide the Town with Certificates of Insurance before services commence.

ARTICLE 2

Responsibilities of Town

2.1 Town agrees to perform all of its obligations, including compensating Contractor, as more particularly set forth in Section 2.4 and Attachment "A". To the extent there is any conflict between the provisions of Section 2.4 and Attachment "A", Section 2.4 shall control.

- **2.2** Town shall provide reasonable assistance to Contractor in the performance of Contractor's duties contained herein.
- 2.3 Invoices submitted to Town by Contractor shall be due and payable no more than thirty (30) days after completion of the services described by this Agreement, subject to the Town's satisfaction, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.
- **2.4** In no event shall Town be required to reimburse Contractor if the project contemplated hereunder is not awarded and fully funded by the appropriate governmental agency. Furthermore, in no event shall the compensation identified in Section 2.1 exceed \$ 26,640.00 unless a Change Order (C.O.) has been pre-approved by both parties.
- 2.5 The contract amount as stated in 2.4 above shall automatically change effective July 1 of each subsequent year beginning on July 1, 2023 at a rate equal to the Consumer Price Index (CPI) but not to exceed a maximum of 5% change, for all items for the South Region for the previous 12 months ending in March, 2023 and then each subsequent March, as published by the US Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics.
- **2.6** Cost and payments: \$26,640.00 per year (as stated in 2.4 above) payable in eight equal payments per month, based on the contract amount in effect at the time services were rendered, beginning in April of each year and ending in November of each year.

Term

The term of this Agreement is for a period starting **July 1, 2022** and ending **June 30, 2026**. This Agreement may be terminated by either party at any time for cause upon 30 days advance written notice. If the Town is the party terminating this Agreement for cause, Contractor shall be entitled to no further compensation. Otherwise, either party may terminate this Agreement without cause upon 60 days advance written notice. In the event of termination without cause, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for all services provided through the date of termination of the contract.

Independent Contractor

In the performance of services hereunder, the Contractor and its agents shall at all times act as an independent contractor practicing their profession and not as employees of the Town. Contractor and its agents shall not have any claim under this Agreement or otherwise against Town for vacation pay, sick leave, retirement benefits, social security, worker's compensation, disability benefits, unemployment insurance benefits, or employee benefits of any other kind.

ARTICLE 5

Indemnification; Limitation of Liability

- 5.1 To the extent allowed by law, each party shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the other party from and against claims, damages, losses and expenses resulting from the negligent acts or omissions of malfeasance of the indemnifying party under this Agreement. The obligation of indemnity hereunder shall not include special, indirect, incidental or consequential damages, including but not limited to, loss of profits or revenue, loss of use of the equipment or any associated equipment, cost of capital, cost of substitute equipment, facilities or services, downtime costs, delays or claims of customers or third parties for any damages, however caused, whether based on warranty, agreement, tort, negligence, strict liability or otherwise and whether or not a party is advised of the possibility of such damages, and if this Agreement is governed by or interpreted in accordance with the laws of a jurisdiction that does not allow the exclusion or limitation of special, indirect, incidental or consequential damages so that the foregoing limitation or exclusion does not apply, then such limitation or exclusion shall apply to the fullest extent allowable under applicable law.
- 5.2 Notwithstanding anything herein, in no event shall a party be liable, under any circumstances, for special, indirect, incidental or consequential damages, whether in warranty, agreement, tort, negligence, strict liability or otherwise and whether or not a party is advised of the possibility of such damages, including, but not limited to loss of profits or revenue, loss of use of the equipment or any associated equipment, cost of capital, cost of substitute equipment, facilities or services, downtime costs, delays, and claims of customers or other third parties for any damages, and if this Agreement is governed by or interpreted in accordance with the laws of a jurisdiction that does not allow the exclusion or limitation of special, indirect, incident or consequential damages so that the foregoing limitation or exclusion does not apply, then such limitation or exclusion shall apply to the fullest extent allowable under applicable law.

Notwithstanding anything herein, each party's aggregate liability for any and all claims whether in agreement, warranty, tort, negligence, strict liability, or any otherwise for any loss or damages arising out of, connected with, or resulting from this Agreement or the performance or breach thereof, or from the design, manufacture, sale, delivery, resale, repair, replacement, installation, technical direction of installation, inspection, operation or use of any equipment covered by or furnished under this Agreement, or from any services rendered in connection therewith or related to the subject matter hereof, shall in no case exceed the contract price of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 6

Force Majeure

deemed to be in default for failure to perform when prevented from doing so by causes beyond its reasonable control including but not limited to acts of war (declared or undeclared) or terrorism, acts of God, fire, strike, labor difficulties, acts or omissions of any governmental authority, including the Town, compliance with government regulations, insurrection or riot, embargo, delays or shortages in transportation or inability to obtain necessary labor, materials, or manufacturing facilities from usual sources or from defects or delays in the performance of its suppliers or subcontractors due to any of the foregoing enumerated causes. In the event of delay due to any such cause, the date of delivery or installation will be extended by a period equal to the delay plus a reasonable time to resume delivery or installation.

ARTICLE 7

Miscellaneous

- 7.1 Entire Agreement; Modification: This Agreement (including all exhibits and schedules attached hereto), contain all of the terms and conditions agreed to by the Parties, and no other contract, document or agreement, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or to bind any Party hereto or to vary any of the terms contained in this Agreement. This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements and understandings between the parties hereto relating to the subject matter hereof.
- **7.2** Severability: If any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or unenforceable, the decision of such court shall not affect or impair any of the remaining provisions of this Agreement, and the Parties shall, to the extent they deem to be appropriate, take such actions as are necessary to correct any such unconstitutional

River Bend Town Council Work Session Meeting April 14, 2022

or unenforceable provision. It is hereby declared to be the intent of the Parties to this Agreement that

this Agreement would have been approved and executed had such an unconstitutional or

unenforceable provision been excluded therefrom.

7.3 **Binding Effect:** This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the

Parties hereto and their respective legal representatives, successors, and assigns.

7.4 Assignment: Except as may otherwise be expressly provided herein, no party may assign

any right, obligation, or liability arising hereunder without the other party's prior written consent. Any

such assignment or attempted assignment shall be null and void.

7.5 **Headings:** Headings in this Agreement are for convenience and reference only and shall

not be used to interpret or construe its provisions.

7.6 **Duplicate Originals:** This Agreement shall be executed in duplicate originals, each

of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute one and the same

instrument.

7.7 Notices and Communications. Notices or communications required or permitted

to be given under this Agreement shall be given to the respective parties by hand or by registered

or certified mail or nationally recognized courier service (said notice being deemed given as of

the date of receipt) at the following addresses:

For Town:

Delane Jackson

Town Manager

45 Shoreline Dr.

River Ben, NC 28562

Telephone: 252-638-3870

For Contractor:

K.A. Jones Lawn and Landscaping

PO Box 511

Mayesville, NC 28555

Telephone: 910-934-9587

Any party may change the address for such notice by giving written notice of such

change of address to the other parties.

5

- 7.8 Governing Law and Venue. It is the intention of the parties hereto that this Agreement and the performance hereunder and all suits and special proceedings hereunder be construed in accordance with and under and pursuant to the laws of the State of North Carolina and that in any action, special proceeding or other proceeding that may be brought arising out of, in connection with, or by reason of this Agreement shall be brought in Craven County, North Carolina.
- 7.9 <u>Non-Waiver</u>. The failure or delay of any party to enforce or pursue any right or remedy existing pursuant to this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of such right or remedy and shall not limit such party's ability to pursue or enforce such right or remedy or any future right or remedy.
- **7.10** <u>E-verify</u>. Contractor will comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the North Carolina General Statutes, to the extent applicable. Contractor shall verify, by affidavit, compliance of the terms of this section upon request by Town.
- **7.11** <u>Iran Divestment</u>. Contractor certifies that it is not listed on the Final Divestment List. The Final Divestment List can be found on the State Treasurer's website at the address www.nctreasurer.com/Iran and should be updated every 180 days.
- 7.12 <u>Israel Boycott</u>. Contractor certifies that it has not been designated by the North Carolina State Treasurer as engaged in the boycott of Israel pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 147-86.81. It is the responsibility of Contractor to monitor compliance with this certification.

Amendment

8.1 Intentionally left blank for future amendments

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Agreement in duplicate originals, a copy of which is retained by each of the parties, the day and year first above written.

TOWN OF RIVER BEND

K.A. JONES
DESIGN AND MANAGEMENT

John R. Kirkland

Mayor

ATTEST:

Kristie J. Nobles
Town Clerk

INCORPORATED SEAL 1981

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act.

By:

Irving J. Van Slyke, Jr.

Finance Officer

Date

ATTACHMENTS:

- A General Provisions
- B Grass Mowing & Trim in Town Parks & Adjoining Roadside Shoulders
- C Water Resources Department Grass Maintenance Locations
- D Mowing Operations that Border on Lakes and Ponds

ATTACHMENT A

MAJOR GRASS, LAWN, PARK GROUNDS MAINTENANCE CONTRACT GENERAL PROVISIONS

- 1. Maintain a ten calendar day mowing schedule (unless otherwise noted herein or agreed upon in advance by both parties) beginning services with a spring cleanup on or about March 15 and continue every ten days through October 31 with one additional cleanup prior to and close to Thanksgiving and one additional cleanup prior to and close to Christmas. A detailed description of areas to be maintained is contained in *Attachments B and C*.
- 2. Police all mowing areas for trash, limbs, cans, paper, etc., and package for removal prior to each mowing. Mow and trim all grasses in all areas identified and numbered herein. Example- "Area 1", "Area 2", etc.
- 3. Use bagger, or other effective method to keep clippings out of the water, around all waterways/lakes. See Attachment D.
- 4. Edge all sidewalks on town property
- 5. Contractor shall notify the Public Works Director at the beginning of each mowing cycle and submit an invoice detailing work performed at the end of each mowing cycle to the Public Works Director. The Public Works Director shall be responsible for ensuring that all invoiced work has been performed in an acceptable manner by the Contractor. Any decisions made by the Public Works Director may be appealed to the Town Manager for final disposition.
- 6. In an attempt to maintain a healthy growth of Centipede, Contractor is authorized to use appropriate pesticides designed to kill the weeds and/or any undesirable vegetation in strict compliance with the manufactures label. In large open areas, such as Hwy 17 Median, Shoreline Drive right-of-way and soccer field area, or any other appropriate area the contractor is encouraged to utilize appropriate chemicals to suppress broadleaf weeds and any undesirable pest/undesirable grasses such as Crabgrass, Bahia grass, Dallis grass, etc.
- 7. Contractor warrants that it shall perform its services described in this Agreement in a professional manner, using that degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by and consistent with the standards of competent professionals practicing in the same or similar locality as the Agreement, and in accordance with the practice of the industry, exercising competent professional knowledge, judgment and skill. Failure to timely perform, or to meet such standards, shall be sufficient grounds for Town to terminate this Agreement for cause. In the alternative, the Town may withhold any compensation due to Contractor until such standard is met and all terms of the Agreement are complied with by Contractor. Contractor will be responsible for replacing any damaged materials (vegetation) or structures resulting from or caused by his actions, negligence or failure to perform in a professional, competent manner.

8. Contractor shall at all times conduct operations in a safe manner including ensuring that all original manufactures safety devices on any equipment being used is in proper working order and is used as intended. Contractor shall be mindful of people, vehicles and structures that may be in the path of any discharge and take steps to avoid directing discharge towards any that are in close proximity of being struck by a projectile thrown from the Contractor's equipment.

ATTACHMENT B

GRASS MOWING AND TRIM WORK IN TOWN PARKS AND ON ADJOINING ROADSIDE SHOULDERS CONTRACTED TO LAWN SERVICE

Area 1: Includes Town Hall lawn, Town Hall Park, picnic area and all of Ritter Field at 45 Shoreline Drive

It is identified by Craven County GIS with PINs 8-201-040, 8-200-041 and 8-201-A-029-A and is approximately 5.75 acres in size (including pond). This area includes all the grass around Town Hall and the area between the Town Hall pond and Plantation Road from the Town Hall to the wetlands area at the west end of Ritter Field.

Trim under any picnic tables, swings, statue, flower bed, fences, and around man-made and natural obstacles. Edge cement walk at Town Hall leading to door steps and the Town Hall parking area facing Plantation Drive.

Area 2: Shoreline Drive right of way on left hand side of road leaving Town

Beginning at the large culvert running under Shoreline Drive from Town Hall lake, (near the rear property line of 206 Bayswater Court), all the way to the Old Pollocksville Road (near the rear property line of 189 Canebrake) maintaining a parallel line 55 feet from the center of Shoreline Drive. This line includes the regular road shoulder, or right of way, plus an additional 25 feet of adjoining Town land and basically runs up to the top of all existing berms.

Most of the 25 foot strip of land adjoining this right of way is planted in Pines, Juniper, and Crepe Myrtles with pine straw mulch

At Town Hall Lake, edge mouth of large Shoreline Drive culvert, and trim grass with weed eater down to water. See Attachment D.

When pine cones are present in this area, accomplish mowing in a fashion that will harvest the pine cones and remove them from this area when mowing operations are completed.

Area 3: Entrance Park on Highway 17 at traffic signal

It is identified by Craven County GIS with PINs 8-205-084 and 8-205-2003 and is approximately 3.5 acres in size (including the pond). The park area on the left-hand side of Shoreline Drive leaving Town includes the brick "Town of River Bend" wall sign. Also, mow both shoulders of Old Pollocksville Rd. from its intersection with Shoreline Drive, headed south, for a distance of approximately 235' to a point marked by the location of utility pole # RSK37.

Unless otherwise directed by town or regulatory agency, trim grass with weed eater down to water. *See Attachment D.*

Beginning at the southeast corner of Shoreline Drive and Old Pollocksville Road, proceed south along Shoreline Drive approximately 500 feet, adjacent to lot identified by Craven County PIN 8-206-4001 to the land maintained by Gentry Cove, identified by Craven County PIN 8-206-1-121 mowing the area between the roadway and the wooded lot.

Area 4: Municipal Building at 51 Shoreline Drive, Town Commons and Park area

It is identified by Craven County GIS with PIN 8-201-008 and is approximately 4.7 acres in size. Includes road shoulder on three sides and along the ditch line at the west end of the recreational field. Trim around rocked area near caboose, around parking bumpers, fence, under any picnic tables, benches, around volleyball court and around other man-made and natural obstacles. Also includes providing weed/grass suppression in volley court area as described in General Provisions 6.

Area 5: Public Works Building at 115 Wildwood Drive

It is identified by Craven County GIS with PIN 8-201-027 and is approximately 2.2 acres in size. Also includes providing weed/grass suppression around perimeter of basketball court area as described in General Provisions 6.

Area 6: Channel Run Town Park at 303 Channel Run Drive

It is identified by Craven County GIS with PIN 8-073-D-026 and is approximately 1.2 acres in size.

Area 7: Springdale Town Park on Barbara Drive

It is identified by Craven County GIS with PIN 8-205-3-00A and is approximately 1.15 acres in size.

Area 8: Medians

All of the median on Anchor Way.

Plantation Drive median from Gull Pointe southwest to intersection of Shoreline Drive.

Small median island beside 244 Shoreline Drive which is in center of cul-de-sac.

Median island from Shoreline Drive at Town Hall east to small bridge including the area behind the guard rail to Quarterdeck Rd. extending to the bulkhead and to the two concrete drainage swells.

Median island off Gangplank Road.

Median island on Lakemere Drive.

Islands (4) in Westchester in the cul-d-sacs of Carriage House Court and Esquire Court.

Area 9: Highway 17 Median

On a twenty-day cycle, mow Highway 17 median beginning at a location approximately 250 feet south of Shoreline Drive, to approximately 50 feet north of Norbury Drive at a point marked by the location of utility pole # RSL05.

Leaves:

Near the end of the Fall season, (at a time mutually agreed upon by the Public Works Director and the Contractor) all leaves are to be removed from the Towns' medians, Town Hall lawn and parking lot. All other areas can be mulched but must not be cast into roadways, waterways, or onto sidewalks.

Fertilizer

No fertilizer application is contemplated or approved by this contract.

WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT GRASS MAINTENANCE LOCATIONS

Area 1-W: Contains Well House No. 3, garage and water tower on at 25 Shoreline Drive near at intersection of Pirates Road.

This is a rectangular tract which has about 215 feet fronting Shoreline Drive and is approximately 330 feet deep. It is identified by Craven County GIS with PINs 8-201-024 and 8-200-066 and is approximately 1.5 acres in size.

Area 2-W: Lift Station on Bayswater Court

Median/island between 200 and 201 Bayswater Court. Edge median and trim any grass in cracks in street around median as needed.

Area 3-W: Well Site No. 1 at 52 Shoreline Drive

This is a triangular tract or lot. It is identified by Craven County GIS with PINs 8-201-058 and 8-201-014 and is approximately 0.65 acres in size

Area 4-W: Water Tower No. 2 at 1411 Plantation Drive

It is identified by Craven County GIS with PINs 8-200-3001 is approximately 1.2 acres in size.

Trim ditch on both ends of entrance driveway to tower.

ATTACHMENT D

MOWING OPERATIONS THAT BORDER ON LAKES AND PONDS, STREETS AND PARKING LOT AREAS

In some areas there will be a ten (10) foot "buffer" of twelve-inch high grass that shall be maintained at this level. This cutting is to keep this "buffer area" managed and attractive.

In the areas of all ponds and drainage ways arrange mowing pattern so clippings are cast up-slope, and not into water.

In the areas by streets and parking lots, arrange mowing pattern so clippings are cast into the grassy areas, not the paved areas.

If necessary, review this operation with the Public Works Director for clarification.



TOWN OF RIVER BEND

45 Shoreline Drive River Bend, NC 28562

T 252.638.3870 F 252.638.2580 www.riverbendnc.org

LANDSCAPING

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT, made and entered into this <u>20</u> day of <u>portion</u>, 2022 by and between the TOWN OF RIVER BEND, a body politic and corporate of the State of North Carolina ("Town"); and K.A. JONES DESIGN AND MANAGEMENT ("Contractor").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Town desires to employ Contractor for those matters contained in this Agreement and Contactor desires to render said services to Town.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the parties as follows:

ARTICLE 1

Responsibilities of Contractor

- 1.1 During the term of this Agreement, and subject to the conditions and terms contained herein, Contractor agrees to provide those services, and other obligations as more fully set forth in Attachment "A".
- 1.2 Contractor shall provide its services hereunder in a timely manner, using that degree of care and professionalism as exercised by similar entities providing such services.
- 1.3 Contractor shall, at its own expense, maintain and carry workers' compensation, (if statutorily required), commercial general liability, and automobile liability insurance. Contractor shall provide the Town with Certificates of Insurance before services commence.

ARTICLE 2

Responsibilities of Town

2.1 Town agrees to perform all of its obligations, including compensating Contractor, as more particularly set forth in Section 2.4 and Attachment "A". To the extent there is any conflict between the provisions of Section 2.4 and Attachment "A", Section 2.4 shall control.

- **2.2** Town shall provide reasonable assistance to Contractor in the performance of Contractor's duties contained herein.
- 2.3 Invoices submitted to Town by Contractor shall be due and payable no more than thirty (30) days after completion of the services described by this Agreement, subject to the Town's satisfaction, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.
- **2.4** In no event shall Town be required to reimburse Contractor if the project contemplated hereunder is not awarded and fully funded by the appropriate governmental agency. Furthermore, in no event shall the compensation exceed **§14,940.00** unless a Change Order (C.O.) has been pre-approved by both parties.
- 2.5 The contract amount as stated in 2.4 above shall automatically change effective July 1 of each subsequent year beginning on July 1, 2023 at a rate equal to the Consumer Price Index (CPI) but not to exceed a maximum of 5% change, for all items for the South Region for the previous 12 months ending in March, 2023 and then each subsequent March, as published by the US Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics.
- **2.6** Cost and payments: \$14,940.00 per year (as stated in 2.4 above), payable in six equal payments based on the contract amount in effect at the time services were rendered, paid after the completion of the each clean-up.

Term

The term of this Agreement is for a period starting **July 1, 2022** and ending **June 30, 2026**. This Agreement may be terminated by either party at any time for cause upon 30 days advance written notice. If the Town is the party terminating this Agreement for cause, Contractor shall be entitled to no further compensation. Otherwise, either party may terminate this Agreement without cause upon 60 days advance written notice. In the event of termination without cause, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for all services provided through the date of termination of the contract.

Independent Contractor

In the performance of services hereunder, the Contractor and its agents shall at all times act as an independent contractor practicing their profession and not as employees of the Town. Contractor and its agents shall not have any claim under this Agreement or otherwise against Town for vacation pay, sick leave, retirement benefits, social security, worker's compensation, disability benefits, unemployment insurance benefits, or employee benefits of any other kind.

ARTICLE 5

Indemnification; Limitation of Liability

- 5.1 To the extent allowed by law, each party shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the other party from and against claims, damages, losses and expenses resulting from the negligent acts or omissions of malfeasance of the indemnifying party under this Agreement. The obligation of indemnity hereunder shall not include special, indirect, incidental or consequential damages, including but not limited to, loss of profits or revenue, loss of use of the equipment or any associated equipment, cost of capital, cost of substitute equipment, facilities or services, downtime costs, delays or claims of customers or third parties for any damages, however caused, whether based on warranty, agreement, tort, negligence, strict liability or otherwise and whether or not a party is advised of the possibility of such damages, and if this Agreement is governed by or interpreted in accordance with the laws of a jurisdiction that does not allow the exclusion or limitation of special, indirect, incidental or consequential damages so that the foregoing limitation or exclusion does not apply, then such limitation or exclusion shall apply to the fullest extent allowable under applicable law.
- 5.2 Notwithstanding anything herein, in no event shall a party be liable, under any circumstances, for special, indirect, incidental or consequential damages, whether in warranty, agreement, tort, negligence, strict liability or otherwise and whether or not a party is advised of the possibility of such damages, including, but not limited to loss of profits or revenue, loss of use of the equipment or any associated equipment, cost of capital, cost of substitute equipment, facilities or services, downtime costs, delays, and claims of customers or other third parties for any damages, and if this Agreement is governed by or interpreted in accordance with the laws of a jurisdiction that does not allow the exclusion or limitation of special, indirect, incident or consequential damages so that the foregoing limitation or exclusion does not apply, then such limitation or exclusion shall apply to the fullest extent allowable under applicable law.

Notwithstanding anything herein, each party's aggregate liability for any and all claims whether in agreement, warranty, tort, negligence, strict liability, or any otherwise for any loss or damages arising out of, connected with, or resulting from this Agreement or the performance or breach thereof, or from the design, manufacture, sale, delivery, resale, repair, replacement, installation, technical direction of installation, inspection, operation or use of any equipment covered by or furnished under this Agreement, or from any services rendered in connection therewith or related to the subject matter hereof, shall in no case exceed the contract price of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 6

Force Majeure

deemed to be in default for failure to perform when prevented from doing so by causes beyond its reasonable control including but not limited to acts of war (declared or undeclared) or terrorism, acts of God, fire, strike, labor difficulties, acts or omissions of any governmental authority, including the Town, compliance with government regulations, insurrection or riot, embargo, delays or shortages in transportation or inability to obtain necessary labor, materials, or manufacturing facilities from usual sources or from defects or delays in the performance of its suppliers or subcontractors due to any of the foregoing enumerated causes. In the event of delay due to any such cause, the date of delivery or installation will be extended by a period equal to the delay plus a reasonable time to resume delivery or installation.

ARTICLE 7

Miscellaneous

- 7.1 Entire Agreement; Modification: This Agreement (including all exhibits and schedules attached hereto), contain all of the terms and conditions agreed to by the Parties, and no other contract, document or agreement, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or to bind any Party hereto or to vary any of the terms contained in this Agreement. This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements and understandings between the parties hereto relating to the subject matter hereof.
- **7.2** Severability: If any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or unenforceable, the decision of such court shall not affect or impair any of the remaining provisions of this Agreement, and the Parties shall, to the extent they deem to be appropriate, take such actions as are necessary to correct any such unconstitutional

or unenforceable provision. It is hereby declared to be the intent of the Parties to this Agreement that this Agreement would have been approved and executed had such an unconstitutional or unenforceable provision been excluded therefrom.

7.3 <u>Binding Effect:</u> This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective legal representatives, successors, and assigns.

7.4 <u>Assignment:</u> Except as may otherwise be expressly provided herein, no party may assign any right, obligation, or liability arising hereunder without the other party's prior written consent. Any such assignment or attempted assignment shall be null and void.

7.5 <u>Headings</u>: Headings in this Agreement are for convenience and reference only and shall not be used to interpret or construe its provisions.

7.6 Duplicate Originals: This Agreement shall be executed in duplicate originals, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

7.7 Notices and Communications. Notices or communications required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be given to the respective parties by hand or by registered or certified mail or nationally recognized courier service (said notice being deemed given as of the date of receipt) at the following addresses:

For Town:

Delane Jackson

Town Manager

45 Shoreline Dr.

River Ben, NC 28562

Telephone: 252-638-3870

For Contractor:

K.A. Jones Lawn and Landscaping

PO Box 511

Mayesville, NC 28555

Telephone: 910-934-9587

Any party may change the address for such notice by giving written notice of such change of address to the other parties.

- 7.8 Governing Law and Venue. It is the intention of the parties hereto that this Agreement and the performance hereunder and all suits and special proceedings hereunder be construed in accordance with and under and pursuant to the laws of the State of North Carolina and that in any action, special proceeding or other proceeding that may be brought arising out of, in connection with, or by reason of this Agreement shall be brought in Craven County, North Carolina.
- 7.9 Non-Waiver. The failure or delay of any party to enforce or pursue any right or remedy existing pursuant to this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of such right or remedy and shall not limit such party's ability to pursue or enforce such right or remedy or any future right or remedy.
- <u>7.10</u> E-verify. Contractor will comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the North Carolina General Statutes, to the extent applicable. Contractor shall verify, by affidavit, compliance of the terms of this section upon request by Town.
- 7.11 Iran Divestment. Contractor certifies that it is not listed on the Final Divestment List. The Final Divestment List can be found on the State Treasurer's website at the address www.nctreasurer.com/Iran and should be updated every 180 days.
- 7.12 Israel Boycott. Contractor certifies that it has not been designated by the North Carolina State Treasurer as engaged in the boycott of Israel pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 147-86.81. It is the responsibility of Contractor to monitor compliance with this certification.

Amendment

8.1 Intentionally left blank for future amendments

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Agreement in duplicate originals, a copy of which is retained by each of the parties, the day and year first above written.

TOWN	OF	BIVER	REND
ICANIA	UI	NIVEN	DENI

By:

John R. Kirkland

Mayor

ATTEST:

Kristie J. Nobles
Town Clerk

K.A. JONES
DESIGN AND MANAGEMENT



This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget

and Fiscal Control Act,

By:

Irving J./Van Slyke, Jr.

Finance Officer

1-20-22

Date

ATTACHMENTS:

A – General Provisions

ATTACHMENT A

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE CONTRACT GENERAL PROVISIONS

- 1. Perform a full clean-up on or before March 31 of each year to include mulching and weeding as described below.
- 2. Perform additional mid-season clean-ups as follows in order to maintain the appearance of the town's property: by the last Friday of April, May, June, July and August.
- 3. Clean up shall include removing trash, limbs, leaves, weeds, vines, and other debris from all shrub/flower beds, trees, and other property as described herein, and removing all such material from the site. Weeding shall mean removing weeds with their roots, and not cutting them near or at the surface or using appropriate pesticides designed to kill the weeds and/or any undesirable vegetation in compliance with the manufactures label.
- 4. Contractor shall notify the Director of Public Works at the beginning of each work cycle and submit an invoice detailing work performed at the end of each cycle to the Director of Public Works. The Public Works Director shall be responsible for ensuring that all invoiced work has been performed in an acceptable manner by the contractor. Any decisions made by the Public Works Director may be appealed to the Town Manager for final disposition.
- 5. Contractor warrants that it shall perform its services described in this Agreement in a professional manner, using that degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by and consistent with the standards of competent professionals practicing in the same or similar locality as the Agreement, and in accordance with the practice of the industry, exercising competent professional knowledge, judgment and skill. Failure to timely perform, or to meet such standards, shall be sufficient grounds for Town to terminate this Agreement for cause. In the alternative, the Town may withhold any compensation due to Contractor until such standard is met and all terms of the Agreement are complied with by Contractor. Contractor will be responsible for replacing any damaged materials (vegetation) or structures resulting from or caused by his actions, negligence or failure to perform in a professional, competent manner.

Mulching/Weeding:

- 1. Weed and mulch flower beds surrounding Town Hall and Town Hall parking lot, including the center island in the Town Hall parking lot, the Memorial Garden adjacent to the gazebo and the bed adjacent to the playground and one (1) flower bed in dog park near statue. These beds are to be mulched with non-colored bark mulch, not pine straw or compost. Mulching only to be done during the first clean-up of each year.
- 2. Weed and mulch shrubs, trees and shrub bed on Municipal Building grounds. This bed is to be mulched with pine straw. Mulching only to be done during the first clean-up of each year.
- 3. Weed and mulch shrub beds adjacent to the caboose in Town Commons. These beds are to be mulched with non-colored bark mulch, not pine straw or compost. Mulching only to be done during the first clean-up of each year but only after weeding as defined in General Provisions is complete.
- 4. Remove vines, wildbrush, sweet gum sprouts, pine, oak, weeds, grasses etc., growing among Junipers along all berms, especially and specifically berms along Shoreline Drive from Lochbridge Drive to water tower and continuing to Brick Road. These areas to be mulched with pine straw.
- 5. Weed and mulch shrub beds at Public Works Office. These beds are to be mulched with non-colored bark mulch, not pine straw or compost. Mulching only to be done during the first clean-up of each year.
- 6. Weed and mulch around large Wildwood Property sign at roadside. These beds are to be mulched with non-colored bark mulch, not pine straw or compost. Mulching only to be done during the first clean-up of each year.
- 7. Edge and keep weed free three (3) flower beds in the Channel Run park
- 8. Weed and clean out wooded copses at the front entrance on both the pond and "wall" sign sides of Shoreline Drive.
- 9. Remove vines and weeds growing on any trees on Town property (including roadway medians/islands).

Pruning:

- 1. Prune all shrubs once per year in March, except azaleas, which are to be pruned one to two (1-2) weeks after flowering.
- 2. Remove suckers from all crepe myrtles on all Town property. This includes on the north side of Shoreline Drive (right side of road leaving Town); from Gentry Cove to Brick Road; south side of Shoreline Drive (left side of road leaving Town) between the roadside and the top of the berm from Town Hall to Old Pollocksville Road; the Plantation Drive median and any others. Crepe myrtles are not to be topped, shaped or pruned.
- 3. Trim all trees and shrubs around Town Hall including the island in the parking lot and the area adjacent to the playground. However, **no** pruning or trimming is to be done on shrubs and trees in that area marked as being the Memorial Garden.
- 4. Trim all trees and shrubs along Shoreline Drive (between the roadside and the top of the berm), and along roadway medians. Growth should not interfere with vehicular traffic or pedestrians. Medians included are as follows:
 - a. All of the median on Anchor Way.
 - b. Plantation Drive median from Gull Pointe southwest to intersection of Shoreline Drive.
 - c. Plantation Drive median from Shoreline Drive at Town Hall east to small bridge at the Quarterdecks.
 - d. Small median island beside 244 Shoreline Drive which is in center of cul-de-sac.
 - e. Median island off Gangplank Road
 - f. Islands (4) in Westchester